
CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

AGENDA
PUBLIC HEARING FOLLOWED BY REGULAR BOARD MEETING

BRESNAN MEETING CENTER
706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois

Wednesday, November 8, 2017
7:00 p.m.

PUBLIC HEARING

A. OPEN PUBLIC HEARING
The Public Hearing is to receive comments on the proposed Property Tax Levy for the year
commencing May 1, 2018 and ending April 30, 2019. A notice of the proposed 2018-2019 Tax Levy
was published in The News-Gazette on November 1, 2017 in compliance with State Statute.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING TAX LEVY

C. CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

C. COMMUNICATIONS

D. TREASURER'S REPORT

1. Consideration of Acceptance of the Treasurer's Report for the Month of October 2017

E. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

1. Volunteer of the Month
2. Project Updates
3. General Announcements

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Champaign Parks Foundation

G. REPORT OF OFFICERS

1. Attorney's Report

2. President's Report

H. CONSENT AGENDA
All items appearing below are considered routine by the Board and shall be enacted by one motion. If
discussion is desired, that item shall be removed and discussed separately.

1. Approval of Minutes of the Public Hearing and the Regular Board Meeting, October 11,2017
2. Approval of Minutes of the Executive Session, October 1 1,2017

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Regular Board Meeting
Novembers, 2017
Page 2

I. NEW BUSINESS

1. Approval of Disbursements as of October 11, 2017
Staff recommends approval of disbursements for the period beginning October 11, 2017 and
ending November 7, 2017. (ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED)

2. Approval to Pay Off 2017 Bondlssye
Staff recommends that the Board approve payment of the 2017 bond issue in the amount of
$1,111,702.64 due by November 30,2017.

3. Approval of a Bid for General Obligation Bonds
Staff recommends that the Board accept the low bid from Commerce Bank for the annual
$1,123,500 General Obligation Bond issue.

4. Approval of Adoption of Ordinance No 626: Bond Ordinance
Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance No. 626: An Ordinance authorizing the issuance of
General Obligation Park Limited Bonds, Series 2017, of the Champaign Park District, Champaign
County, Illinois, and providing the details of such Bonds and for the levy of direct annual taxes to
pay such bonds, and related matters. (ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED)

5. Approval of Ado^ion^^^
Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance No. 627: An Ordinance to Levy Property Taxes in the
amount of $12,920,331 for fiscal year beginning May 1, 2018 and ending April 30, 2019. (ROLL
CALL VOTE REQUIRED)

6. Approval of an Extension of Agreement with Carle Foundation for Parkind at Tennis Center
Staff recommends that the Board approve renewing the License Agreement with The Carle
Foundation for parking spaces adjacent to the Dodds Tennis Center for a seven (7) month term
commencing December 1, 2017 and expiring June 30, 2018.

7. Approval of a Contract with RATIO Architects, Inc. Regarding Human Kinetics Park
Staff recommends approval of an Agreement between the Park District and Ratio Architects to
development schematic designs for the Martens Center at Human Kinetics Park.

8. Approval of Flower Island Fee Increase
Staff recommends Option 1, raising the Flower Island Program fee to $11.10 per ft2 to $12.00 per
ft2 (an approximate 8% increase) for the 2018 season, increase to $12.96 for the 2019 season, and
increase to $14.00 for the 2020 season.

J. OLD BUSINESS

K. DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Day Camp Report
2. Taste of Champaign-Urbana Report

L. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Board will convene into Executive Session under the Illinois Open Meetings Act, specifically 5
ILCS 120/2(c)(1) for the discussion of the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline,
performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body, or legal counsel for the public
body; (c)(3) the selection of a person to fill a public office; (c)(5) for the purchase or lease of real
property for the use of the public body including meetings held for the purpose of discussing whether a
particular parcel should be acquired; (c)(6) the setting of a price for sale or lease of property owned by
the public body; and (c)(11) to address litigation that is probable and imminent.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Regular Board Meeting
Novembers, 2017
Page 3

N. RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING

0. EXECTION SESSION ACTION ITEMS

1. Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding regarding Spalding Park

P. ADJOURN

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

October 11, 2017

PUBLIC HEARING

The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Public Hearing on Wednesday, October
11, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois,
pursuant to published notice duly given. President Hays presided over the hearing.

Present: President Craig Hays, Vice President Timothy P. McMahon, Commissioners Barbara Kuhl,
Jane L. Solon, and Kevin Miller, Treasurer Gary Wackerlin and Attorney Guy Hall.

Staff Present: Joseph DeLuce, Executive Director, Cindy Harvey, Assistant to the Executive
Director/Board Secretary, Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance, Dan Olson, Director of Operations,
Andrew Weiss, Director of Planning, Tammy Hoggatt, Director of Human Resources, Steven Bentz,
Director of the Virginia Theatre, and Ashley Sims, Volunteer Coordinator.

Tim Mitchell, reporter with The News-Gazette and other staff were in attendance as well as members
of the public were in attendance.

Open the Public Hearing
President Hays opened the Public Hearing at 7:00 p.m. He stated the purpose of the Public Hearing
was to discuss and receive comments on the intent to issue $1,123,500 in General Obligation Bonds.
He reported a notice of Public Hearing was published in The News-Gazette on October 2, 2017.

President Hays called for comments from the public. There were no comments received.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to close the Public Hearing. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 5-0.

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Regular Board Meeting on Wednesday,
October 11, 2017 immediately following the Public Hearing at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706
Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, pursuant to notice duly given. President Hays presided over the
meeting.

The Commissioners, Officers, staff and public present at the Public Hearing were in attendance at the
Regular Meeting.

Call to Order
President Hays called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

Presentations

Audit
Hope Wheeler, CPA, Principal with CliftonLarsonAllen, presented the audit. She highlighted areas of the
Governance Letter. Ms. Wheeler discussed two new GASB standards that were implemented. Ms.
Wheeler highlighted the Management Letter and the Financial Statement. She reported that the Park
District received an unmodified (clean) opinion. She reviewed other areas of the financial statement.

The Board thanked Ms. Wheeler for the presentation.



Heritaae Park Project
This item will be presented at a future Board meeting.

Comments from the Public
There were no comments from the public.

Communications
President Hays circulated the communications.

Treasurer's Report

Treasurer Wackerlin reviewed the Treasurer's Report for the month of September 2017 and found it to be
in appropriate order.

Commissioner Solon made a motion to accept the Treasurer's Report for the month of September 2017.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Miller. The motion passed 5-0.

Executive Director's Report

Volunteer of the Month
Ashley Sims reported that JD Knight and his nephew Wait Lunsford were chosen as September Volunteers
of the Month. They were chosen for taking the time to show their support for the Champaign Park District
and helping to spread the word about its amazing parks by participating in the Bucket List Challenge. JD
and Wait were presented with a Certificate of Appreciation and a bag of goodies.

Proiect Updates
Mr. DeLuce distributed a list of project updates to the Board. He asked the Board members to let him know
if they have any questions regarding the projects.

General Announcements
Mr. DeLuce introduced Dan Olson, the new Director of Operations. He reported that Hocus Pocus was
held on October 7, 2017 at the Virginia Theatre and attracted over 1,200 participants. Mr. DeLuce also
reported that Flannel Fest was held at Hessel Park on October 7, 2017 and was well attended.

Committee and Liaison Reports

Champaign Parks Foundation
President Hays reported that the Foundation Board did not meet due to lack of a quorum.

Report of Officers

Attorney's Report
None.

President's Report
None.

Consent Agenda
President Hays stated that all items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and shall be acted
upon by one motion. If discussion is desired regarding any item, that item shall be removed and discussed
separately.

1. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, September 13, 2017
2. Approval of Minutes of the Executive Session, September 13, 2017
3. Approval of Minutes of the Special Meeting, September 27, 2017
4. Approval of Board Policy Manual

Minutes of the October 11, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
Page 2



Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Miller. After brief discussion the motion was voted upon. The motion passed 5-0.

New Business

Approval of Disbursements as of September 13, 2017
Vice President McMahon made a motion to approve the list of disbursements for the period beginning
September 13, 2017 and ending October 10, 2017. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Miller.
The motion passed 5-0. Upon roll call vote, the vote was as follows: Commissioner Solon - yes;
Commissioner Miller - yes; Vice President McMahon - yes; President Hays - yes; and Commissioner Kuhl
-yes.

Acceptance of FY16-17 A_ydjt
Ms. Wallace presented the report. Discussion ensued.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to accept the FY16-17 audit as presented. The motion was seconded
by Commissioner Miller. The motion passed 5-0.

Approval to Solicit Bids for Issuance of General Obligation Bonds
Ms. Wallace presented the report. She reported that this is an annual procedure.

Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve and confirm authorizing the Treasurer to solicit bids
for the issuance of $1,123,500 in General Obligation Bonds for the purpose of providing funds to pay
for the building, maintaining, improving and protecting the parks and boulevards of the Park District,
and for the payment of expenses incident thereto, as provided in a resolution adopted by the Board at
its Regular Meeting held September 13, 2017. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Miller.
The motion passed 5-0.

Approval of a Resolution Estimatinci Taxes to be Levied for Fiscal Year19
Ms. Wallace presented the report. She reported that the Board is required to pass a resolution setting the
tax levy for the following fiscal year (FY) 2019. Afterwards, the staff will publish the Truth in Taxation
notice, if required. She also reported that the Park District needs to hold a public hearing on its intent to
adopt such an increased tax levy at the November Regular Board meeting. Discussion ensued regarding
the estimated increase in the EAV and the total estimated tax levy.

Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve a Resolution setting the tax levy for fiscal year beginning
May 1, 2018 and ending April 30, 2019 at $12,920,331 with a rate not to exceed .7149, and scheduling a
public hearing on the Tax Levy Ordinance for Wednesday, November 8, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan
Meeting Center as required by the Truth in Taxation Act. The motion was seconded by Vice President
McMahon. The motion passed 5-0.

Approval of the Change Orders 3, 4 and 5 to the Hessel Park Project
Mr. Weiss presented the report. He updated the Board on Change Orders 3, 4 and 5. Discussion ensued
about the reasons for Change Orders 3 and 4.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve a resolution to approve Change Orders 3, 4 and 5 as they
were not reasonably foreseeable at the time of the original Hessel Park Splashpad and Restroom
Redesign contract, are germane to the original contract as signed, and are in the best interest of the Park
District as authorized by law. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Miller. The motion passed 5-0.

Approval of Bid for Janitorial Services at the Viminia Theatre
Mr. Bentz presented the reported. He discussed the bid process and reported that two bids were
received forjanitorial services at the Virginia Theatre. Mr. Bentz responded to questions by the Board.

Minutes of the October 1 1, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
Page 3



Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve accepting and authorizing the Executive Director to
enter into a contract with the lowest responsible bidder, ServiceMaster Janitorial Cleaning,
Champaign, IL, at the hourly rate of $20.15 to provide cleaning services at the Virginia Theatre for two
(2) years with the option to renew for one (1) additional year. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Miller. The motion passed 5-0.

Approval of a Bid for Replacement of Springer Cultural Center Roof
Mr. Olson presented the report.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve accepting the lowest responsible base bid for replacement
of the Springer Cultural Center roof from Top Quality Roofing Company, in the amount of $356,700, and
authorizing the Executive Director to enter into a contract for the work. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 5-0.

Approval of an Amendment to a Tuition Assistance Reimbursement Agreement
Ms. Hoggatt presented the report. Discussion ensued about the number of hours required to receive a
certificate in the HVAC program and that the program books become the property of the Park District.

This item was tabled until a future meeting.

Old Business
None.

Discussion Items

Boys and Girls Club Memorandum of Understandina
Mr. DeLuce presented the Board with a draft of a Memorandum of Understanding with the Don Moyer
Boys and Girls Club regarding the proposed Martens Center at Human Kinetics Park. He reported that staff
is seeking feedback and direction on the proposed MOD. Mr. DeLuce stated that once the MOD is
finalized, it will be presented to the Board at a future meeting for approval. Discussion ensued.

Virginia Theatre Proposed Shows
Mr. Bentz presented the report. He indicated that the Park District has the opportunity to possibly self-
produce two artist performances at the Virginia Theatre. Mr. Bentz stated that staff is seeking Board
feedback on staff's request to supplement the Virginia Theatre "House" performance budget to make offers
to the artists. Discussion ensued about the artists, the amounts to secure the artists, possible revenues
and expenditures, and how to supplement the performance budget. It was the consensus of the Board that
Ms. Wallace research the method for budgetary adjustments to enable the performances to proceed.

Comments from Commissioners
Commissioner Solon reported that she attended Flannel Fest and that it was well attended. She thanked
the staff for holding a contractor accountable on warranty for a project.

Commissioner Miller thanked the Park District department heads for meeting with him. He commented on
making it an annual occurrence.

President Hays stated that he enjoyed ZZ Top's performance on September 12, 2017 at the Virginia
Theatre. He stated that he will attend the Kansas performance on October 13, 2017. President Hays also
echoed Commissioner Solon's comments about staff holding the contractor accountable.

Executive Session
Commissioner Solon moved on the bases set forth below to convene into Executive Session. The motion
was seconded by Vice President McMahon. The motion passed 5-0. Upon roll call vote, the vote was as
follows: Commissioner Solon - yes; Commissioner Miller - yes; Vice President McMahon - yes; President
Hays -yes; and Commissioner Kuhl. The Board convened into Executive Session under the Illinois Open
Meetings Act, specifically 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) for the discussion of the appointment, employment,

Minutes of the October 11, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
Page 4



compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body, or legal
counsel for the public body; (c)(3) the selection of a person to fill a public office; (c)(5) for the purchase or
lease of real property for the use of the public body including meetings held for the purpose of discussing
whether a particular parcel should be acquired; (c)(6) the setting of a price for sale or lease of property
owned by the public body; and (c)(11) to address litigation affecting or on behalf of the particular body that
is pending, probable or imminent.

Return to Regular Meeting
Following the adjournment of the Executive Session, the Board reconvened in open meeting.

Action Items from Executive Session
Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve a resolution to sell lots in The Trails of Abbey Fields
Subdivision. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Miller, The motion passed 5-0.

Adjourn
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to adjourn
the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Miller. The motion passed 5-0 and the meeting
was adjourned at 8:31 p.m.

Craig W. Hays, President Cindy Harvey, Secretary

Minutes of the October 11, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
Page 5



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: November 2, 2017

SUBJECT: Approval to pay off 2016 General Obligation Bond

Background
The annual general obligation (GO) bond is issued annually with the payment due in lump sum with
interest on November 30. Interest due for the 2016 GO bond is $11,302.64 which is $3,489 more
than in the prior year.

Prior Board Action
Board approved the 2016 bond issue on November 9, 2016 in the amount of $1,100,400 plus
interest at 1.03%.

Budget Impact
The bond payment plus interest is included in the FY18 budget and will be paid out of property tax
revenues.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends that the Board approve payment of $1,111 ,702.64 to Commerce Bank to pay off
the 2016 bond issue. The payment for the $1,100,400 bond issue plus interest is due no later than
November 30, 2017.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe DeLuce, CPRP
Director of Finance Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: November 2, 2017

SUBJECT: Approval to Accept Bid for Purchase of 2017 General Obligation Bond

Background
As directed by the Board of Commissioners at the October 11, 2017 meeting, bids were solicited from
seventeen local banks on October 12, 2017. Bids were due no later than 2:00 p.m. CST on October 31,
2017. The prior year GO Bond (2016) was awarded to Commerce Bank at an interest rate of 1.03%.

Bid Results
Bids were received from four (4) local banks for the purchase of $1,123,500 General Obligation Bonds.
The results are as follows:

I Bank
Interest |

Rate !
1.37%|
1.55% I
1.60%|
1.75%|

Serve as

Bond
Registrar

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

If Yes, Fee

Charged
$

$
$

j Commerce Bank
I Central Illinois Bank
] Illinois National Bank
jBusey Bank

It should be noted for disclosure purposes that while the bid letter signed by Illinois National Bank is by a
member of the Champaign Parks Foundation board of directors, no conflict of interest exists as this
member does not have any influence over the Park District Board of Commissioners on this matter.

Prior Board Action
September 13, 2017 - Board set the date for the public hearing and approved a resolution noting the intent
to issue.
October 11, 2017 - Board authorized the Treasurer to solicit bids.

Budget Impact
The legal fees and interest related to the 2017 bond issue is included in the FY18 budgeted expenditures.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends that the Board accept the lowest responsible bid from Commerce Bank of 1 .37% for the
$1,123,500 bond issue and to act as the bond registrar at no additional fee.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Andrea N. Wallace, CPA
Director of Finance

Joe DeLuce, CPRP
Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: November 2, 2017

SUBJECT: Adoption of Ordinance No. 626: An Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of
General Obligation Park Limited Bonds, Series 2017, of the Champaign Park
District, Champaign County, Illinois and Providing the Details of Such Bonds
and For the Levy of Direct Annual Taxes to Pay Such Bonds, and Related
Matters

Backflroynd
Each year the Champaign Park District issues General Obligation Bonds in order to fund necessary
improvements and repairs to Park District property and to make the payment of debt service on
outstanding alternate revenue bonds issued to build Sholem Aquatic Center. Last year the Board
authorized the issuance of $1,100,400 of General Obligation Bonds. CPI increased 2.1% allowing
the Park District the authority to add that percent to the $1,100,400, increasing the new bond issue
to $1,123,500. As a reminder, the interest rate for the current bond issue was 1.03%.

Prior Board Action
On September 13, 2017, the Board approved a resolution stating the Park District's need and intent
to issue $1,1 23,500 of General Obligation Bonds for FY18 and approved a resolution setting the
public hearing for October 1 1,2017.

Budget Impact
The GO Bond issuance has been included in the FY18 budget for payment on the alternate
revenue bonds as well as capital improvement purchases.

Recommejid^
Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance No. 626: An Ordinance authorizing the issuance of General
Obligation Park Limited Bonds, Series 2017, of the Champaign Park District, Champaign County, Illinois,
and providing the details of such Bonds and for the levy of direct annual taxes to pay such bonds, and
related matters.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe DeLuce, CPRP
Director of Finance Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



ORDINANCE NO. 626

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL
OBLIGATION PARK LIMITED BONDS, SERIES 2017, OF THE
CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, CHAMPAIGN COUNTY, ILLINOIS,
AND PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR THE
LEVY OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES TO PAY SUCH BONDS, AND
RELATED MATTERS

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners (sometimes herein, the
"Corporate Authorities") of the Champaign Park District, in Champaign County, Illinois (the
"Issuer"), has determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the Issuer's best interests to
provide for the maintenance, improvements, and protection of lands, buildings and parks,
including land acquisition and related design, facilities, improvements and costs (also including
related costs and expenses and the payment of debt service (i.e., the "Refunding") on certain
outstanding obligations, the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Issuer is a park district and special district under the provisions
of Section 8 of Article VII (Local Government) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois and
has the applicable authority under The Park District Code (Section 1205/1-1 et seq. of Chapter
70 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, as supplemented and amended, including by the Registered
Bond Act, the Bond Replacement Act, the Bond Authorization Act, and the Local Government
Debt Reform Act (including particularly, but without limitation. Section 15.01 concerning
"Limited Bonds"), collectively, the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with the Act and this ordinance, the
Issuer is authorized to issue its General Obligation Park Limited Bonds, Series 2017, up to the
aggregate principal amount of $1,123,500 (the "Bonds") for the purpose of providing funds to
pay the costs of the Project and related costs and expenses; and

WHEREAS, the Bonds so authorized shall be issued as "limited bonds" under
the provisions of Section 15.01 of the Local Government Debt Reform Act of the State of
Illinois, 30 ILCS 350/15.01, as amended (the "Debt Reform Act"), and as such it is not

necessary to submit the proposition of the issuance of the Bonds to the voters of the Issuer for

approval; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with the Bond Issue Notification Act,
with the required notice having been duly published on October 2, 2017 in The News-Gazette,
the Issuer on October 11, 2017 held, conducted and concluded the required public hearing; and



WHEREAS, pursuant to arrangements made on behalf of the Issuer, Commerce
Bank, Champaign, Illinois (including its assigns, the "Purchaser") in response to the Issuer's
request for proposals has agreed by a letter term sheet (the "Purchase Agreement") to purchase
the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, for convenience of reference only this ordinance is divided into
numbered sections with headings, which shall not define or limit the provisions hereof, as
follows:

Page
Preambles ........................................................................................................................ 1

Section 1. Authority and Purpose ................................................................................. 2

Section 2. Authorization and Terms of Bonds................................................................ 2

Section 3. Sale and Delivery........................................................................................... 3

Section 4. Execution and Authentication........................................................................ 4

Section 5. Transfer, Exchange and Registration............................................................. 4

Section 6. Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.................................................................. 5

Section 7. General Obligations/Limited Tax Bonds....................................................... 6

Section 8. Form of Bonds ............................................................................................... 7

Section 9. Levy and Extension of Taxes......................................................................... 11

Section 10. Debt Service Fund.......................................................................................... 12

Section 11. Bond Proceeds Fund ...................................................................................... 12

Section 12. Arbitrage Rebate............................................................................................ 12

Section 13. Investment Regulations.................................................................................. 13

Section 14. Non-Arbitrage and Tax-Exemption.............................................................. 13

Section 15. Bank Qualified Bonds.................................................................................... 17

Section 16. Contract and Severability............................................................................... 17

Section 17. Conflict and Repeal........................................................................................ 18

Section 18. Effective Date ............................................................................................ 18

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF PARK
COMMISSIONERS OF THE CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, CHAMPAIGN
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows:

Section 1. Authority and Purpose. This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the
Act for the purpose of financing the Project.

Section 2. Authorization and Terms of Bonds. For the purposes described
above in Section 1, there is hereby allocated the sum of $1,123,500, to be derived from the
proceeds of the Bonds. For such purposes, Bonds of the Issuer shall be issued and sold in an
aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $1,123,500, shall each be designated "General
Obligation Park Limited Bonds, Series 2017", and shall be issuable in the denominations of
$500.00 each or any authorized integral multiple thereof. The Bonds shall be numbered
consecutively from 1 upwards in order of their issuance and may bear such identifying numbers
or letters as shall be useful to facilitate the registration, transfer and exchange of the Bonds.

-2-



Unless otherwise determined in an order to authenticate the Bonds, not inconsistent herewith,
each Bond shall be dated as of the date of issuance thereof. The Bonds shall mature in the

principal amount on November 30 in the year and bear interest at the rate percent per annum, as
follows:

Principal Interest

Year Amount($l Rate (%)

2018 1,123,500 1.37

Each Bond shall bear interest from its date, or from the most recent interest

payment date to which interest has been paid, computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting
of twelve 30-day months, and payable in lawful money of the United States of America at
maturity on November 30, 2018, at the rate percent per annum above set forth. The principal of
and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of
America upon presentation and surrender thereof at the office of Commerce Bank, Champaign,
Illinois, the Paying Agent for the Bonds (including its successors, the "Paying Agent"). Interest
on the Bonds shall be payable on each interest payment date to the registered owners of record
appearing on the registration books maintained by Commerce Bank, through its designated office
in Champaign, Illinois, the Bond Registrar on behalf of the Issuer for such purpose (including its
successors, the "Bond Registrar"), as of the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day
(whether or not a business day) of the calendar month of the interest payment date. Interest on
the Bonds shall be paid by check or draft mailed to such registered owners at their addresses
appearing on the registration books therefor. The Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer
or exchange any Bond during a period commencing the fifteenth (15th) day next preceding each
interest payment date and ending on such interest payment date.

The Bonds shall not be subject to optional call for redemption prior to their stated
maturities.

The Bonds shall have such terms and provisions supplemental to, in addition to or
modified and revised with respect to, those as provided herein, as along as the aggregate
principal amount of the Bonds does not exceed $1,123,500 and the tax levies in Section 9 are not
exceeded, as may be set forth in a Bond Order. For purposes of the foregoing and otherwise in
this ordinance, the term "Bond Order" shall mean a certificate signed by the President and
attested by the Secretary and under the seal of the Issuer, setting forth and specifying details of
the Bonds, including but not limited to, as the case may be, identification of the Bond Registrar
and Paying Agent and Bond purchaser or purchasers (each a "Purchaser"), final rates, optional
and mandatory call provisions, insurance provisions and the final maturity schedule. The Bonds
shall be conformed to any Bond Order.

Section 3. Sale and Delivery. All acts and things done by officers of the Issuer
in connection with the sale of the Bonds shall be and they are hereby in all respects ratified,
confirmed and approved. The sale of the Bonds to Commerce Bank, Champaign, Illinois, as the
Purchaser shall be and is hereby authorized and approved.

-3-



The President, Secretary, Treasurer and other officials of the Issuer are hereby
authorized and directed to do and perform, or cause to be done or performed, for or on behalf of
the Issuer each and every thing necessary for the issuance of the Bonds, including the due and
proper execution, delivery and performance of this ordinance, the Purchase Agreement and all
related and incidental agreements, certificates, receipts and opinions, upon payment of the full
purchase price of the Bonds, an amount equal to 100% of par.

Section 4. Execution and Authentication. Each Bond shall be executed in the
name of the Issuer by the manual or authorized facsimile signature of its President and the
corporate seal of the Issuer, or a facsimile thereof, shall be thereunto affixed or otherwise
reproduced thereon and attested by the manual or authorized facsimile signature of its Secretary

and countersigned by the manual or authorized facsimile signature of its Treasurer.

In case any officer whose signature, or a facsimile of whose signature, shall
appear on any Bond shall cease to hold such office before the issuance of such Bond, such Bond
shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if the person whose
signature, or a facsimile thereof, appears on such Bond had not ceased to hold such office. Any
Bond may be signed, sealed or attested on behalf of the Issuer by any person who, on the date of
such act, shall hold the proper office, notwithstanding that at the date of such Bond such person
may not hold such office. No recourse shall be had for the payment of any Bonds against the
President or any member of the Corporate Authorities or any officer or employee of the Issuer
(past, present or future) who executes the Bonds, or on any other basis.

Each Bond shall bear thereon a certificate of authentication executed manually by
the Bond Registrar. No Bond shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this ordinance or
shall be valid or obligatory of any purpose until such certificate of authentication shall have been
duly executed by the Bond Registrar. Such certificate of authentication shall have been duly
executed by the Bond Registrar by manual signature, and such certificate of authentication upon
any such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been authenticated and delivered
under this ordinance. The certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to have
been executed by the Bond Registrar if signed by an authorized officer of the Bond Registrar, but
it shall not be necessary that the same officer sign the certificate of authentication on all of the
Bonds issued hereunder.

Section 5. Transfer, Exchange and Registration. The Bonds shall be
negotiable, subject to the provisions for registration of transfer contained herein. Each Bond
shall be transferable only upon the registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar on behalf
of the Issuer for that purpose at the principal corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar, by the
registered owner thereof in person or by such registered owner's attorney duly authorized in
writing, upon surrender thereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the
Bond Registrar and duly executed by the registered owner or such registered owner's duly
authorized attorney. Upon the surrender for transfer of any such Bond, the Issuer shall execute
and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds registered in the

name of the transferee, of the same aggregate principal amount, maturity and interest rate as the
surrendered Bond. Bonds, upon surrender thereof at the office of the Bond Registrar, with a
written instrument satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner or

-4-



such registered owner's attorney duly authorized in writing, may be exchanged for an equal
aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity and interest rate and of the
denominations of $500.00 each or any authorized integral multiple thereof, less previous

retirements.

For every such exchange or registration of transfer of Bonds, the Issuer or the
Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or
sums shall be paid by the person requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to
the exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer. No other charge shall be made
for the privilege of making such transfer or exchange. The provisions of the Bond Replacement
Act shall govern the replacement of lost, destroyed or defaced Bonds.

The Issuer, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the
person in whose name any Bond shall be registered upon the registration books as the absolute
owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving

payment of, or on account of, the principal of, premium, if any, or interest thereon and for all
other purposes whatsoever, and all such payments so made to any such registered owner or upon
such registered owner's order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability
upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer nor the Bond
Registrar or the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Section 6. Bond Registrar and Paying Agent. The Issuer covenants that it shall
at all times retain a Bond Registrar and Paying Agent with respect to the Bonds and shall cause
to be maintained at the corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar a place where Bonds may be
presented for registration of transfer or exchange, that it will maintain at the designated corporate

trust office of the Paying Agent a place where Bonds may be presented for payment, that it shall
require that the Bond Registrar maintain proper registration books and that it shall require the
Bond Registrar and Paying Agent to perform the other duties and obligations imposed upon them
by this ordinance in a manner consistent with the standards, customs and practices concerning
municipal securities. The Issuer may enter into appropriate agreements with the Registrar and
Paying Agent in connection with the foregoing, including as follows (in any event (a) - (e) below

shall apply to the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent):

(a) to act as Bond Registrar, authenticating agent, Paying Agent and transfer agent
as provided herein;

(b) to maintain a list of registered owners of Bonds as set forth herein and to
furnish such list to the Issuer upon request, but otherwise to keep such list confidential;

(c) to cancel and/or destroy Bonds which have been paid at maturity or submitted
for exchange or transfer;

(d) to furnish the Issuer at least annually upon request a certificate with respect to
Bonds cancelled and/or destroyed; and

-5-



(e) to furnish the Issuer at least annually an audit confirmation of Bonds paid,
Bonds outstanding and payments made with respect to interest on the Bonds.

The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall signify their acceptances of the duties
and obligations imposed upon them by this ordinance. The Bond Registrar by executing the
certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to have certified to the Issuer that it
has all requisite power to accept, and has accepted, such duties and obligations not only with
respect to the Bond so authenticated but with respect to all of the Bonds. The Bond Registrar
and Paying Agent are the agents of the Issuer for such purposes and shall not be liable in
connection with the performance of their respective duties, except for their own negligence or
default. The Bond Registrar shall, however, be responsible for any representation in its
certificate of authentication on the Bonds.

The Issuer may remove the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent at any time. In case
at any time the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent shall resign or shall be removed or shall become
incapable of acting, or shall be adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or if a receiver, liquidator or
conservator of the Bond Registrar, or of its property, shall be appointed, or if any public officer
shall take charge or control of the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent or of their respective
properties or affairs, the Issuer covenants and agrees that it will thereupon appoint a successor
Bond Registrar or Paying Agent, as the case may be. The Issuer shall mail or cause to be mailed
notice of any such appointment made by it to each registered owner of Bonds within twenty (20)
days after such appointment. Any Bond Registrar or Paying Agent appointed under the
provisions of this Section 6 shall be a bank, trust company, national banking association or other
qualified professional with respect to such matters, maintaining its office in the State of Illinois.

Section 7. General Obligations/Limited Tax Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued
as "limited bonds" under the Act. The full faith and credit of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably
pledged to the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The Bonds shall
be direct and general obligations of the Issuer, and the Issuer shall be obligated to levy ad
valorem taxes upon all the taxable property in the Champaign Park District for the payment of
the Bonds and the interest thereon, without limitation as to rate but limited as to amount.
Although this Bond constitutes a general obligation of the Issuer and no limit exists on the rate of
such direct annual tax, the amount of such tax is limited by the provisions of the Property Tax
Extension Limitation Law of the State of Illinois, as amended (the "Law"). The Law provides
that the annual amount of the taxes to be extended to pay the issue of Bonds of which this Bond
is one and all other limited bonds (as defined in the Local Government Debt Reform Act of the
State of Illinois, as amended) hereafter issued by the Issuer shall not exceed the debt service
extension base (as defined in the Law) of the Issuer (the "Base") less the amount extended to
pay certain other referendum bonds heretofore and hereafter issued by the Issuer, as more fully
described in the proceedings of the Issuer providing for the issue of this Bond. The Issuer is
authorized to issue from time to time additional limited bonds payable from the Base and

additional referendum bonds payable from property taxes unlimited as to rate or amount, as
permitted by law, and to determine the lien priority of payments to be made from the Base to pay
the Issuer's limited bonds.

-6-



Notwithstanding any other provision of this ordinance, the annual amount of the
taxes to be extended by the County Clerk to pay the Bonds and all other limited bonds (as
defined in the Debt Reform Act) hereafter issued by the Issuer shall not exceed the Base of the

Issuer, based upon the Issuer's 1996 levies for its General Obligation Park Bonds, Series 1993
($536,985), 1995 ($97,600) and 1996 ($364,000), with "cpi" adjustments. No limit, however,
exists on the rate of the direct annual tax levied herein, and the Bonds shall constitute a general
obligation of the Issuer.

Section 8. Form of Bonds. Subject to the Purchaser accepting typewritten
Bonds, as hereby provided, the Bonds shall be issued as fully registered Bonds conforming to the
industry customs and practices of printing, including part on the front and part on the reverse of
the certificates, as appropriate, the blanks to be appropriately completed when the Bonds are
delivered; and the Bonds shall be prepared in compliance with the National Standard
Specifications for Fully Registered Municipal Securities prepared by the American National
Standards Institute and, with appropriate insertions and modifications, including in respect of the
Policy and the Insurer, shall be in substantially the form, as follows (CUSIPs optional):

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]

-7-



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF ILLINOIS

COUNTY OF CHAMPAIGN
CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

GENERAL OBLIGATION PARK LIMITED BOND
SERIES 2017

REGISTERED NO. _ REGISTERED

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: DATED DATE: CUSIP:

Registered Owner:

Principal Amount:

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS that the Champaign Park District, a
general park district situated in The County ofChampaign, in the State of Illinois (the "Issuer"),
acknowledges itself indebted and for value received hereby promises to pay to the Registered
Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set forth above on the
Maturity Date specified above, and to pay interest on such Principal Amount from the later of the
Dated Date hereof or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid, as the
case may be, at the Interest Rate per annum set forth above, computed on the basis of a 360-day
year consisting of twelve 30-day months and payable in lawful money of the United States of
America on November 30, 2018, by check or draft mailed to the Registered Owner of record
hereof as of the fifteenth (15th) day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month of
such interest payment date, at the address of such Registered Owner appearing on the registration
books maintained for such purpose at the designated office of Commerce Bank, in Champaign,
Illinois, as Bond Registrar (including its successors, the "Bond Registrar"). This Bond, as to
principal and premium, if any, when due, will be payable in lawful money of the United States of
America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the payment office of Commerce Bank,
through its designated office in Champaign, Illinois, as Paying Agent (including its successors,
the "Paying Agent"). The full faith and credit of the Issuer, including the power to levy taxes
without limit as to rate but limited as to amount as "limited bonds" under Section 15.01 of the
Local Government Debt Reform Act, are irrevocably pledged for the punctual payment of the
principal of and interest on this Bond according to its terms.

This Bond is issued in the aggregate principal amount of $1,123,500, which is
authorized and issued under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of Illinois and

pursuant to and in accordance with an authorizing ordinance adopted by the Board of Park
Commissioners of the Issuer on November 8, 2017, and entitled: "An Ordinance Authorizing the
Issuance of General Obligation Park Limited Bonds, Series 2017, of the Champaign Park
District, Champaign County, Illinois, and Providing the Details of Such Bonds and for the Levy
of Direct Annual Taxes To Pay Such Bonds, and Related Matters". The Bonds are issued to

finance the building, maintaining, improving and protecting the Issuer's parks and boulevards
and to pay debt service on certain outstanding obligations, and related costs and expenses.



The Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturities.

This Bond is transferable only upon the registration books therefor by the
Registered Owner hereof in person, or by such Registered Owner's attorney duly authorized in
writing, upon surrender hereof at the office of the Bond Registrar in Champaign, Illinois,
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the
Registered Owner or by such Registered Owner's duly authorized attorney, and thereupon a new
registered Bond or Bonds, in the authorized denominations of $500.00 or any authorized integral
multiple thereof and of the same aggregate principal amount as this Bond, shall be issued to the
transferee in exchange therefor. In like manner, this Bond may be exchanged for an equal
aggregate principal amount of Bonds of any authorized denomination.

The Bond Registrar shall not be required to exchange or transfer any Bond during
the period from the fifteenth (15th) day preceding the interest payment date and ending on such
interest payment date. The Issuer or the Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to
reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to the
transfer or exchange of this Bond. No other charge shall be made for the privilege of making

such transfer or exchange.

The Issuer, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent may treat and consider the
person in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of
receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal, premium, if any, and interest due hereon
and for all other purposes whatsoever, and all such payments so made to such Registered Owner
or upon such Registered Owner's order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the
liability upon this Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer nor the

Bond Registrar or the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of any Bonds against the President, any
member of the Board of Park Commissioners or any other officer or employee of the Issuer
(past, present or future) who executes any Bonds, or on any other basis. The Issuer may remove
the Bond Registrar or Paying Agent at any time and for any reason and appoint a successor.

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the
certificate of authentication hereon shall have been duly executed by the Bond Registrar.

The Issuer has designated the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations"
under Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,as amended.

-9-



It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things
required to be done, exist and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond in
order to make it a legal, valid and binding general obligation of the Issuer have been done, exist
and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and that
the series of Bonds of which this Bond is one, together with all other indebtedness of the Issuer,
is within every debt or other limit prescribed by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Champaign Park District, in Champaign County,
Illinois, by its Board of Park Commissioners has caused this Bond to be executed in its name and
on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signature of its President, and its corporate seal, or a
facsimile thereof, to be hereunto affixed or otherwise reproduced hereon and attested by the
manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary and countersigned by the manual or facsimile
signature of its Treasurer, all as of the Dated Date set forth above.

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTMCT

(SEAL)

Attest:
President

Secretary Countersigned:

Treasurer

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

Dated:

This Bond is one of the General Obligation Park Limited Bonds, Series 2017, described in the

within mentioned ordinance.

COMMERCE BANK,
Champaign, Illinois, as Bond Registrar

By.
Authorized Signer

Bond Registrar Commerce Bank

and Paying Agent: Champaign, Illinois

-10-



ASSIGNMENT

For value received the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto

[Name, Address and Tax Identification Number of Assignee]
the within Bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints

attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for
registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises,

Dated

Signature
Signature Guarantee:

Notice: The signature on this assignment must correspond with the name of the Registered
Owner as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or
enlargement or any change whatever.

Section 9. Levy and Extension of Taxes. For the purpose of providing the
money required to pay the interest on the Bonds when and as the same falls due and to pay and
discharge the principal thereof as the same shall mature, there shall be levied upon all the taxable
property within the Champaign Park District, Champaign County, Illinois, in each year while any
of the Bonds shall be outstanding, a direct annual tax for the year 2017 sufficient for that
purpose, in addition to all other taxes, and in the amount for such year, as follows:

For the Year A Tax Sufficient to Produce the Sum of ($):

2017 1,138,850 for interest and principal

Interest or principal coming due at any time when there shall be insufficient funds on hand to pay
the same shall be paid promptly when due from current funds on hand in advance of the
collection of the taxes herein levied; and when such taxes shall have been collected,
reimbursement shall be made to such fund or funds from which such advance was made in the
amounts thus advanced.

After this ordinance becomes effective and before the issuance under this
ordinance of any Bonds, a copy hereof certified by the Secretary, which certificate shall recite
that this ordinance has been duly adopted, shall be filed with the County Clerk of Champaign
County, Illinois, who is hereby directed to ascertain the rate per cent required to produce the
aggregate tax hereinabove provided to be levied for the year 2017 and to extend the same for
collection on the tax books in connection with other taxes levied in such year in and by the Issuer
for general corporate purposes of the Issuer, and in such year such annual tax shall be levied and
collected in like manner as taxes for general corporate purposes for such year are levied and
collected and, when collected, such taxes shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the
principal of and interest on the Bonds herein authorized as the same become due and payable or
reimbursing the Issuer for any funds advanced therefor.

-11-



The Issuer covenants and agrees with the registered owners of the Bonds that so
long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, unless and to the extent funds are irrevocably on
deposit in the Debt Service Fund established in Section 10 below, the Issuer will take no action
or fail to take any action which in any way would adversely affect the ability of the Issuer to levy
and collect the foregoing taxes, and the Issuer and its officers will comply with all present and
future applicable laws in order to assure that the foregoing taxes will be levied, extended and
collected as provided herein and deposited in the Debt Service Fund established in Section 10

below to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds.

Section 10. Debt Service Fund. Moneys derived from taxes herein levied are
hereby directed to be set aside for the sole purpose of paying principal of and interest on the
Bonds when and as the same come due. All of such moneys, and all other moneys to be used for
the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including sufficient cash on hand in an
existing bond and interest fund, which cash is hereby pledged, shall be deposited in the "Debt
Service Fund", and further identified to the series of related Bonds, which is hereby established
as a special fund of the Issuer and shall be administered as a bona fide debt service fund under
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. At the time of issuance of the Bonds accrued
interest, if any, received upon the issuance of the Bonds shall be deposited in the Debt Service
Fund, and applied to pay interest on the Bonds,

Section 11. Bond Proceeds Fund. All of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds
(exclusive of accrued interest as provided above in Section 10) shall be deposited in the "Bond
Proceeds Fund", and further identified to the series of related Bonds, which is hereby
established as a special fund of the Issuer. Within such fund there shall be a "Refunding
Account" related to holding Bond proceeds to currently pay debt-service on outstanding
alternate bonds issued to finance park facilities, and a "Project Account" for any excess
proceeds for the Project. Moneys in the Bond Proceeds Fund, upon appropriation by
proceedings supplemental to this ordinance, shall be used for the purposes specified in Section 1
of this ordinance, including for the payment of costs of issuance of the Bonds, but may thereafter
be reappropriated pursuant to applicable law and used for other lawful purposes of the Issuer.
Before any such reappropriation shall be made, upon request there shall be filed with the
Secretary an opinion of Evans, Froehlich, Beth & Chamley, Champaign, Illinois, or other
nationally recognized bond counsel ("Bond Counsel") to the effect that such reappropriation
will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds under Section 103 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Section 12. Arbitrage Rebate. The Issuer does not reasonably expect to issue
more than $5,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations in the calendar year of the issuance of the Bonds

within the meaning of the small issuer exception under Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The Issuer shall comply with the provisions of Section
148(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relating to the rebate of certain
investment earnings at periodic intervals to the United States of America to the extent that there
shall have been filed with the Secretary an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such
compliance is necessary to preserve the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax

-12-



purposes of interest on the Bonds under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.

Section 13. Investment Regulations. No investment shall be made of any
moneys in the Debt Service Fund of 2017 or the Bond Proceeds Fund of 2017 except in
accordance with the tax covenants and other covenants set forth in Section 14 of this ordinance,
All income derived from such investments in respect of moneys or securities in any fund or
account shall be credited in each case to the fund or account in which such moneys or securities
are held.

Any moneys in any fund or account that are subject to investment yield
restrictions, including in respect of the Escrow Agreement, may be invested in United States
Treasury Securities, State and Local Government Series, pursuant to the regulations of the
United States Treasury Department, Bureau of Public Debt. The Issuer's President or Treasurer
and agents designated by such officers are hereby authorized to submit, on behalf of the Issuer,
subscriptions for such United States Treasury Securities and to request redemption of such
United States Treasury Securities.

Section 14. Non-Arbitrase and Tax-Exemption. One purpose of this Section
14 is to set forth various facts regarding the Bonds and to establish the expectations of the
Corporate Authorities and the Issuer as to future events regarding the Bonds and the use of Bond
proceeds. The certifications and representations made herein and at the time of the issuance of
the Bonds are intended, and may be relied upon, as certifications and expectations described in
the Income Tax Regulations dealing with arbitrage and rebate (the "Regulations"). The
covenants and agreements contained herein, and at the time of the issuance of the Bonds, are
made for the benefit of the registered owners from time to time of the Bonds. The Board of Park
Commissioners and the Issuer agree, certify, covenant and represent as follows:

(1) The Bonds are being issued to pay the costs described in Section 1 above, and
all of the amounts received upon the sale of the Bonds, plus all investment earnings
thereon (the "Proceeds") are needed for the purpose for which the Bonds are being
issued.

(2) The Issuer will apply proceeds of the Bonds to the costs in (1) above
concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, with respect to which not less than 5% will
be incurred and paid within 6 months of issuance of the Bonds.

(3) The Issuer has on hand no funds which could legally and practically be used
for the purposes hereof which are not pledged, budgeted, earmarked or otherwise
necessary to be used for other purposes. Accordingly, no portion of the Proceeds will be
used (i) directly or indirectly to replace funds of the Issuer or any agency, department or
division thereof that could be used for such purposes, or (ii) to replace any proceeds of
any prior issuance of obligations by the Issuer. No portion of the Bonds is being issued
solely for the purpose of investing the Proceeds at a Yield higher than the Yield on the
Bonds. For purposes of this Section 14, "Yield" means that yield (that is, the discount
rate) which when used in computing the present worth of all payments of principal and

-13-



interest to be paid on an obligation (using semi-annual compounding on the basis of a
360-day year) produces an amount equal to its issue price, including accrued interest, and
the purchase price of the Bonds is equal to the first offering price at which more than
10% of the principal amount of each maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public
(excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity
of underwriters or wholesalers).

(4) All principal proceeds of the Bonds, upon due appropriation, will be deposited
in the Bond Proceeds Fund for the purposes described in Section 1 above, and accrued
interest, if any, and premium, if any, received on the delivery of the Bonds will be
deposited in the Debt Service Fund and used to pay the first interest due on the Bonds.
Earnings on investment of moneys in any fund or account will be credited to that fund or
account. Costs for the purposes described in Section 1 above, including issuance costs of
the Bonds, are to be paid from the Bond Proceeds Fund, and no other moneys are
expected to be deposited therein. Interest on and principal of the Bonds are to be paid
from the Debt Service Fund. No Proceeds will be used more than 30 days after the date
of issue of the Bonds for the purpose of paying any principal or interest on any issue of
bonds, notes, certificates or warrants or on any installment contract or other obligation of
the Issuer or for the purpose of replacing any funds of the Issuer used for such purpose.

(5) The Debt Service Fund is established to achieve a proper matching of
revenues and earnings with debt service in each Bond year. Other than any amounts held
to pay principal of matured Bonds that have not been presented for payment, it is
expected that any moneys deposited in the Debt Service Fund will be spent within the 12-
month period beginning on the date of deposit therein. Any earnings from the investment
of amounts in the Debt Service Fund will be spent within a one-year period beginning on
the date of receipt of such investment earnings. Other than any amounts held to pay
principal of matured Bonds that have not been presented for payment, it is expected that
the Debt Service Fund will be depleted at least once a year, except for a reasonable
carryover amount not to exceed the greater of (i) one-year's earnings on the investment of

moneys in the Debt Service Fund, or (ii) in the aggregate, one-twelfith (1,12th) of the
annual debt service on the Bonds.

(6) Other than the Debt Service Fund, no funds or accounts have been or are

expected to be established, and no moneys or property have been or are expected to be
pledged (no matter where held or the source thereof) which will be available to pay,
directly or indirectly, the Bonds or restricted so as to give reasonable assurance of their
availability for such purposes. No property of any kind is pledged to secure, or is
available to pay, obligations of the Issuer to any credit enhancer or liquidity provider.

(7) (a) All amounts on deposit in the Bond Proceeds Fund or the Debt Service
Fund and all Proceeds, no matter in what funds or accounts deposited ("Gross
Proceeds"), to the extent not exempted in (b) below, and all amounts in any fund or
account pledged directly or indirectly to the payment of the Bonds which will be
available to pay, directly or indirectly, the Bonds or restricted so as to give reasonable
assurance of their availability for such purpose contrary to the expectations set forth in

-14-



(6) above, shall be invested at market prices and at a Yield not in excess of the Yield on
the Bonds.

(b) The following may be invested without Yield restriction:

(i) amounts invested in obligations described in Section 103(a)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (but not specified

private activity bonds as defined in Section 57(a)(5)(C) of the Code), the
interest on which is not includable in the gross income of any registered
owner thereof for federal income tax purposes ("Tax-Exempt
Obligations");

(ii) amounts deposited in the Debt Service Fund of 2017 that
are reasonably expected to be expended within 13 months from the deposit
date and have not been on deposit therein for more than 13 months; and

(iii) all amounts for the first 30 days after they become Gross
Proceeds (in general the date of deposit in any fund or account securing
the Bonds);

(iv) all amounts in the Project Account of the Bond Proceeds
Fund for the applicable 3-year temporary period from the date of issue of
the Bonds, subject to applicable expenditure requirements; and

(8) Subject to (17) below, once moneys are subject to the Yield limits of (7)(a)
above, such moneys remain Yield restricted until they cease to be Gross Proceeds.

(9) As set forth in Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, the Issuer is excepted from the required rebate ofarbitrage profits on the Bonds
because the Issuer is a governmental unit with general taxing powers, none of the Bonds
is a "private activity bond" as defined in Section 141 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, all the net proceeds of the Bonds are to be used for the local
government activities of the Issuer, and the aggregate face amount of all Tax-Exempt
Obligations (other than "private activity bonds" as defined in Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended) issued by the Issuer and all subordinate entities thereof during the
calendar year of issuance of the Bonds, is not reasonably expected to exceed $5,000,000.

(10) None of the Proceeds will be used, directly or indirectly, to replace funds
which were used in any business carried on by any person other than a state or local
governmental unit.

(11) The payment of the principal of or the interest on the Bonds will not be,
directly or indirectly (A) secured by any interest in (i) property used or to be used for a
private business activity by any person other than a state or local governmental unit, or
(ii) payments in respect of such property, or (B) derived from payments (whether or not

-15-



by or to the Issuer), in respect of property, or borrowed money, used or to be used for a
private business activity by any person other than a state or local governmental unit.

(12) None of the Proceeds will be used, directly or indirectly, to make or finance
loans to persons other than a state or local governmental unit.

(13) No user of facilities in respect of the Bonds other than a state or local
government unit will use the Project on any basis other than the same basis as the general
public, and no person other than a state or local governmental unit will be a user of the
Project as a result of (i) ownership, or (ii) actual or beneficial use pursuant to a lease or a
management or incentive payment contract, or (iii) any other similar arrangement.

(14) Beginning on the 15th day prior to the Bond sale date, the Issuer will not
have sold or delivered, and will not sell or deliver, (nor will it deliver within 15 days after
the date of issue of the Bonds) any other obligations pursuant to a common plan of
financing, which will be paid out of substantially the same source of funds (or which will
have substantially the same claim to be paid out of substantially the same source of
funds) as the Bonds or will be paid directly or indirectly from Proceeds.

(15) No portion of facilities in respect of the Bonds is expected to be sold or
otherwise disposed of prior to the last maturity of the Bonds.

(16) The Issuer has not been notified of any disqualification or proposed
disqualification of it by the Internal Revenue Service as a bond issuer which may certify
bond issues under the Regulations.

(17) The Yield restrictions contained in (7) above or any other restriction or
covenant contained herein may be violated or changed if the Issuer receives an opinion of
Bond Counsel to the effect that such violation or change will not adversely affect the tax-
exempt status of interest on the Bonds to which it is otherwise entitled.

(18) The Issuer acknowledges that any changes in facts or expectations from those
set forth herein may result in different Yield restrictions or rebate requirements from
those set forth herein and that Bond Counsel should be contacted if such changes do
occur.

(19) The Corporate Authorities have no reason to believe the facts, estimates,
circumstances and expectations set forth herein are untrue or incomplete in any material
respect. On the basis of such facts, estimates, circumstances and expectations, it is not

expected that the Proceeds or any other moneys or property will be used in a manner that
will cause the Bonds to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and of the Regulations. To the best of the
knowledge and belief of the Corporate Authorities, such expectations are reasonable, and
there are no other facts, estimates and circumstances that would materially change such
expectations.

-16-



The Issuer also agrees and covenants with the registered owners of the Bonds
from time to time outstanding that, to the extent possible under Illinois law, it will comply with
whatever federal tax law is adopted in the future which applies to the Bonds and affects the tax-

exempt status of the Bonds.

The Corporate Authorities hereby authorize the officials of the Issuer responsible
for issuing the Bonds, the same being the President, Secretary and Treasurer of the Issuer, to
make such further covenants and certifications as may be necessary to assure that the use thereof
will not cause the Bonds to be arbitrage bonds and to assure that the interest in the Bonds will be
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. In connection therewith, the Issuer
and the Corporate Authorities further agree: (a) through the officers of the Issuer, to make such
further specific covenants, representations as shall be truthful, and assurances as may be
necessary or advisable; (b) to consult with Bond Counsel approving the Bonds and to comply
with such advice as may be given; (c) to pay to the United States, as necessary, such sums of
money representing required rebates of excess arbitrage profits relating to the Bonds; (d) to file
such forms, statements, and supporting documents as may be required and in a timely manner;
and (e) if deemed necessary or advisable, to employ and pay fiscal agents, financial advisors,
attorneys, and other persons to assist the Issuer in such compliance.

Section 15. Bank Qualified Bonds. Pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the Issuer hereby designates the Bonds as
"qualified tax-exempt obligations" as defined in such Section 265(b)(3). The Issuer represents
that the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations that will be issued by the Issuer
and all subordinate entities of the Issuer during the calendar year in which the Bonds are issued
will not exceed $10,000,000 within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. The Issuer covenants that it will not so designate and issue more
than $10,000,000 aggregate principal amount of such tax-exempt obligations in such calendar
year. For purposes of this Section 15, the term "tax-exempt obligations" includes "qualified
501(c)(3) Bonds" (as defined in the Section 145 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended) but does not include other "private activity bonds" (as defined in Section 141 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended).

Section 16. Ordinance to Constitute a Contract and Severability. The
provisions of this ordinance shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the registered
owners of the Bonds. Any pledge made in this ordinance and the provisions, covenants and
agreements herein set forth to be performed by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be for the equal
benefit, protection and security of the registered owners of any and all of the Bonds. All of the
Bonds, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, shall be of equal rank without
preference, priority or distinction of any of the Bonds over any other thereof except as expressly
provided in or pursuant to this ordinance. This ordinance and the Act shall constitute full
authority for the issuance of the Bonds, and to the extent that the provisions of this ordinance
conflict with the provisions of any other ordinance or resolution of the Issuer, the provisions of
this ordinance shall control. If any section, paragraph or provision of this ordinance shall be held
to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,
paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this ordinance.

-17-



Section 17. Conflict and Repeal. All ordinances, resolutions or parts thereof in
conflict herewith be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and this
ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith upon its adoption.

Section 18. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately

upon its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form, and prior to the issuance of the
Bonds this ordinance shall be filed with the County Clerk of Champaign County, Illinois.

Upon motion by Commissioner _, seconded by
Commissioner _, adopted this 8 day of November, 2017, by roll
call vote as follows:

Ayes (names):

Nays (names):

Absent (names):

(SEAL)

Attest:

Secretary President

-18-



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: November 2, 2017

SUBJECT: Adoption of Ordinance No. 627: An Ordinance to Levy Property Taxes in the
amount of $12,920,331 for Fiscal Year Beginning May 1, 2018 and Ending April
30,2019

Background
Each year, the Board is required to pass a Resolution setting the tax levy for the following fiscal
year (FY) 2019. Following the approval of the Resolution, staff will publish the Truth in Taxation
notice, if required. Additionally, the District needs to hold a public hearing on its intent to adopt such
an increased tax levy at the November Board meeting and then adopt an Ordinance on the tax levy
to file with the Champaign County Clerk. The Ordinance must be filed no later than the third
Tuesday in December.

Prior Board Action
On October 11, 2017, the Board adopted a Resolution setting the estimated tax levy for FY2018-19
at $12,920,331.00 and set the public hearing for November 8, 2017.

Budget Impact
The estimated levy approved will be incorporated into the fiscal year ended April 30, 2019 budget.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance No. 627: An Ordinance to Levy Property Taxes in the amount
of $12,920,331.00 for fiscal year beginning May 1, 2018 and ending April 30, 2019. (ROLL CALL VOTE
REQUIRED)

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe DeLuce, CPRP
Director of Finance Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



TAX LEVY ORDINANCE
No.627

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY THE ANNUAL TAX FOR THE FISCAL
YEAR BEGINNING MAY 1, 2018 AND ENDING APRIL 30, 2019

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS OF THE CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT,
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS:

Pursuant to authority vested in them by the Park District Code, Article Five, the Commissioners of the Champaign

Park District in meeting assembled do hereby find and declare that there will be required to be raised by general

taxation in the amounts hereinafter set forth to be levied upon all of the taxable property in said Champaign Park

District, in order to meet and defray all the necessary expenses and liabilities of the Champaign Park District as

required by statute or voted by the people for uses and purposes as follows, to wit:

2018-19

FUND CLASSIFICATION LEVY

Fund 01 - GENERAL CORPORATE

SALARIES AND WAGES $ 2,749,869
FRINGE BENEFITS 430,154
CONTRACTUAL 1,039,450

COMMODITIES/SUPPLIES 593,972
UTILITIES 168,196
ROUTINE/PERIODIC MAINTENANCE 282,996
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 780,334

TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 01 GENERAL CORPORATE 6,044,971

Fund 02-RECREATION

SALARIES AND WAGES 1,457,751
FRINGE BENEFITS 74,217
CONTRACTUAL 204,927
COMMODITIES/SUPPLIES 227,081
UTILITIES 184,885
ROUTINE/PERIODIC MAINTENANCE 56,000

TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 02 RECREATION 2,204,861

Fund 03-MUSEUM

SALARIES AND WAGES 720,132
FRINGE BENEFITS 82,307
CONTRACTUAL 438,970
COMMODITIES/SUPPLIES 131,691
UTILITIES 49,384
ROUTINE/PERIODIC MAINTENANCE 25,000
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 188,625

TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 03 MUSEUM 1,636,109



Fund 04 - LIABILITY INSURANCE

SALARIES AND WAGES 49,440
FRINGE BENEFITS 9,420
CONTRACTUAL 19,720
COMMODITIES/SUPPLIES 13,056
INSURANCE 217,340
CAPITAL OUTLAY 30,000

TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 04 LIABILITY INSURANCE 338,976

Fund 06-IMRF FUND

FRINGE BENEFITS 335,590
TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 06 IMRF 335,590

Fund 08-AUDIT FUND

CONTRACTUAL 21,686
TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 08 AUDIT 21,686

Fund 09 - PAVING AND LIGHTING FUND

ROUTINE/PERIODIC MAINTENANCE 91,258
TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 09 PAVING AND LIGHTING 91,258

Fund 14 - SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
FRINGE BENEFITS 361,698

TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 14 SOCIAL SECURITY 361,698

Fund 15 - SPECIAL RECREATION FUND

SALARIES AND WAGES 280,000
FRINGE BENEFITS 22,878
CONTRACTUAL 60,000
COMMODITIES/SUPPLIES 20,600
UTILITIES 10,525
INSURANCE 13,000
CAPITAL OUTLAY 316,558

TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 15 SPECIAL RECREATION 723,561

Fund 19 - POLICE PROTECTION

CONTRACTUAL 23,493
TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 19 POLICE PROTECTION 23,493

Fund 21 - BOND AMORTIZATION FUND

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 1,138,128
TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - FUND 21 BOND AMORTIZATION 1,138,128



TAX LEVY SUM MARY

$

6,044,971

2,204,861

1,636,109

338,976

335,590

21,686

91,258

361,698

723,561

23,493

1,138,128

12,920,331

The following are the total taxes to be levied for:

Fund 01-GENERAL

Fund 02 - RECREATION

Fund 03-MUSEUM

Fund 04 - LIABILITY INSURANCE

Fund 06-IMRF FUND

Fund 08-AUDIT FUND

Fund 09 - PAVING AND LIGHTING FUND

Fund 14 - SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

Fund 15 - SPECIAL RECREATION FUND

Fund 19 - POLICE PROTECTION

Fund 21 - BOND AMORTIZATION FUND

TOTAL AMOUNT IS HEREBY LEVIED AS - ALL FUNDS

Making the aggregate sum of Twelve Million, Nine Hundred Twenty Thousand, Three Hundred Thirty One

Dollars ($12,920,331) to be raised by taxation and levied on all of the taxable property in said Park District for

the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2018 and ending April 30,2019, in order to meet and defray all necessary

expenses and liabilities of the Park District as required by statute of voted by the people in accordance with

law, provided that the levy of such amounts does not cause the property tax rate to exceed 0.7149. If the levy

amount of $12,920,331 produces a tax rate higher than 0.7149, then the amount to be levied and collected for

all funds shall be reduced to an amount which produces the 0.7149 tax rate for all funds.

The Secretary of the Champaign Park District shall file with the County Clerk of the County of Champaign, State

of Illinois, a certified copy of this Ordinance, no later than the third Tuesday of December 2017.

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately on and after its passage and approval.

Adopted this 8th day of November 2017, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows:

Ayes:

Absent:

Nays:

Abstain:

CraigW. Hays, President

Champaign Park District

Board of Commissioners

Cindy Harvey, Secretary

Champaign Park District

Board of Commissioners



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: November 2, 2017

SUBJECT: Renewal of License Agreement with The Carle Foundation (Carle) for Parking
Spaces Adjacent to the Newt Dodds Tennis Center

Background
In 2008, the Park District entered into an agreement with Carle for parking space adjacent to the Tennis
Center. Carle was allowed to construct 20 parking spaces according to Park District policies and
specifications. The term of the agreement was effective December 1 , 2008 to November 30, 2011.The
agreement included an option to continue the License Agreement after the expiration date of the initial
three year term for successive three year terms. The current agreement expires November 30, 2017.
Carle is interested in extending the agreement until June 30, 2018. Carle plans to be moved out of the
building by this time.

Prior Board Action
• November 12, 2008, the Board approved a License Agreement for a three year terms

commencing December 1, 2008 and ending November 30, 2011
• November 9, 2011 , the Board approved a License Agreement Extension for a three year term

commencing on December 1, 2011 and ending November 30, 2014.
• December 10, 2014, the approved a License Agreement Extension for a three year term

commencing December 1, 2014 and ending November 30, 2017.

Budget Impact
During the first three years of the License Agreement, Carle paid the Park District $2,400 annually for
the parking spaces. In accordance with the original agreement, monthly compensation for the extension
periods have been increased by four percent (4%) annualized for the period hereof as set forth in the
License Agreement. Under the renewals, Carte paid the Park District $2,496 in 2012, $2,596 in 2013,
$2,700 in 2014, $2,796 in 2015, $2,892 in 2016 and will pay a total of $2,988 in 2017.

Recommended Action
Staff is requesting Board approval to renew the License Agreement with Carle for parking spaces
adjacent to the Newt Dodds Tennis Center commencing December 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2018.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Cindy Harvey Joe DeLuce
Assistant to the Executive Director Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



LICENSE AGREEMENT

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of be.^n\Jr^T ( , 2008, by and between the
Champaign Park District, an Illinois municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as, "Park District"), with a principal
address is 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, and The Carte Foundation, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation
(hereinafter referred to as, "Carle") with a principal address at 611 ,W. Park Street, Urbana, IL 61801.

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Park District and Carle
agree as follows:

Section 1 - General Purpose: The purpose of this License Agreement is to permit Carlo to utilize certain space on
Park District property for parking purposes adjacent to the Park District's Tennis Center. It is understood that Park
District is providing Carle with the right and privilege to use a portion of Park District property for the specific and
limited purpose of parking. The Park District will retain possession and control of the Premises, and this License
Agreement shall not be deemed to be a lease or confer any interest in the Premise. At all times, the Park District
shall have management and control of the establishment, operation and maintenance of the parking area
(hereinafter referred to as, "Premises"), except as may otherwise be specifically limited herein.

Section 2. - Description of Premises: The Premises which are the subject of this License Agreement legally
described as:

A part of the W.1/2 of Section 35, T.20 N., R. 8 E. of the 3rd P.M., Champaign County, Illinois, more •
particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Southwest corner of the N.1/2 of the N. % of the S.W. % of Section 35, T. 20
N., R. 8 E. of the 3Id P.M.; thence N. 0°38" W., along the West line of said Section 35, 432.01 feet;
thence N. 89°22" E., 2217.33 feet; thence N. 0°38" W., a distance of 30.00 feet to a point on the
East right-of-way line of Farber Drive; thence N. 0°38" W., along said East line, 238.00 feet to the
Southwest comer of Lot 1 of Interstate Research Park; thence N. 89°22" E., along the South line of
said Lot 1, 300.62. feet to the true point of beginning; thence continuing along said South line N.
89°22" E., 135.00 feet to the Southeast corner of said Lot 1, said point being on the East line of the
S.W. % of said Section 35; thence S. 0°37.7" E., along said East line, 67.00 feet; thence S. 89°22"
W., along a line parallel to the aforesaid South line of said Lot 1,135.00 feet; thence N. 0°37.7 W.,
67.00 feet to the point of beginning, containing 9,045 square feet (0.208 acres), more or less, and
all situated in the City of Champaign, Champaign County, Illinois,

All constituting part of the Park District's Tennis Center property located at and commonly known
as 2802 Farber Drive, Champaign, Illinois.

Section 3 - Term: This License Agreement shall be effective December 1, 2008 and shall expire on midnight
November 30, 2011 subject to its continuation provided for in Section 10 regarding Option for Successive Terms.
This License Agreement may terminate at any time without notice upon the express written consent of both Parties
or for default as provided for herein;

Section 4 - Compensation: Carlo shall pay Park District TWO THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS
($2,400.00) in compensation each year commencing with the effective date hereof for TWENTY (20) parking
spaces. In that event that this License Agreement continues after the initial term pursuant to the Option for
Successive Terms provision herein, Carle shall pay an increased amount of four percent (4%) per annum using the
prior year's compensation as the base year for each and every year after the expiration of the initial term.

Section 5-Carle Responsibilities:
Carle shall:

A, Be responsible for causing the construction of TWENTY (20) parking spaces at the Premises according to
Park District policies and specifications. In connection therewith, Carle shall engage appropriate licensed
professional engineers and contractors to undertake the construction thereof. All such construction shall be
undertaken pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations of the Park District, including without limitation,
applicable provisions of the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act and bonding requirements. In no event shall Carle
undertake any action which causes a claim for lien upon Park District property.



• without first seeking permission from Park District. Carle employee usage of the TWENTY (20) spaces shall be
exclusive for the hours 6:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.

Section 10 - Option for Successive Terms: Park District shall permit Carle options to continue this License
Agreement after the expiration of the initial three (3) year term. The option shall be successive three (3) year terms ,
with the first such successive term commencing December 1, 201 1 and ending November 30, 2014, and the
second successive term commencing December 1, 2014 and ending November 30, 2017. The option may be
exercised by Carle prior to the expiration of the initial term of this License Agreement, or after the exercise of the
first three (3) year renewal term; provided that Carle shall give Park District at least sixty (60) days' but not more
than one hundred twenty (120) days' advance written notice of the desire to exercise such options. Such notice
shall be as required pursuant to Section 20 hereof.

Section 11 - Default: In, the event that either Party fails or refuses to comply with the terms of this License
Agreement, and cure such default within thirty (30) days of written notice as provided for herein, then the other
Party shall have the right to terminate this License Agreement by a further ten (10) day written notice. Any such
termination shall not terminate or affect the obligations or rights to enforce the terms of this License Agreement as
they may have accrued prior to such termination.

Section .12 - Mutual Hold Harmless and Indemnification: Park District shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless
Carlo and any of its directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives from and against any and all liability,
loss, costs, causes of actions, demands, attorneys fees, expenses, claims, s.uits and judgments of whatsoever kind
and character, including without limitation, all possible costs of responding to demands, in whatever form that may
take, with respect to any claim made against Carle that arises solely from an act, failure or omission on the part of
Park District, or any of its commissioners, officers, employees, agents and representatives in carrying out the terms
of this License Agreement. Carle shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Park District and any of its directors,
officers, employees, agents and representatives from and against any and all liability, loss, costs, causes of
actions, demands, attorneys fees, expenses, claims, suits and judgments of whatsoever kind and character,
including without limitation, all possible costs of responding to demands, in whatever form that may take, with
respect to any claim made against Park District that arises solely from an act, failure or omission on the part of
Carle, or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives in carrying out of the terms of this

. License Agreement

Section 13 - Compliance with Applicable Laws, Rules and Reoulations: The Parties, and any contractor with

which a Party may enter into any agreement shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and Local statutes,
rules, regulations, ordinances and licensing requirements regarding the performance and carrying out of the terms
of this License Agreement or any other agreement related hereto.

Section 14 - Independent Contractors: Notwithstanding any other provision of this License Agreement, the
relationship between the Park District and Carle is, and shall remain, one of independent contractors. Nothing in
this License Agreement shall be construed to establish a relationship of employer/employee, partners or joint
ventures between the Parties, provided that the relationship with regard to this License Agreement is one of
licensor and licensee.

Section 15 - Assignment: This License Agreement shall not be assigned or delegated by Carle to any subsidiary,
successor, partner, employee, agent or affiliate without the prior written consent of Park District. If Park District
permits assignment of this License Agreement at any one or more times, such assignment shall not be deemed
permission to assign the performance of this License Agreement at any other time or times.

Section 16 - Applicable Law and Venue: The Parties agree that the laws of the State of Illinois shall govern the
terms of this License Agreement. In the event of any claim or loss regarding this License Agreement, Champaign
County, Illinois shall be the appropriate venue for any such claim or suit.

Section 17 - Severability; In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this License Agreement
shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such provision shall be deemed severed from this License
Agreement, and the validity, legality, or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this License Agreement or any
other application thereof shall not be altered or impaired thereby, and shall, therefore, remain in effect

Section 18 - Waiver; Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this
License Agreement, shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or



relinq'uishment of any right or power at any one time or times be deemed a waiver or reljnquishment of the right or
power at all or any other times.

Section 19- Counterparts: This License Agreement shall be executed in two or more counterparts each of which
shall be deemed to be an original.

Section 20- Notice: All notices required under this License Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to
have been given at the time they are mailed to the respective Party via certified mail, return receipt requested with
an additional copy sent via U.S. first class mail at the address set forth below, or at such other place or address as
the Parties shall provide to each other in writing.

CHAMPA1GN DISTRICT
Attention: Ms. Babble Herakovich
Executive Director
706 Kenwood Road
Champaign, IL 61821

THE CARLE FOUNDATION
Attention: James Leonard, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer
611W. Park Street
Urbana, IL 61801

Seciion 21 - Intewretatioai ofAflreemenf: In interpreting this License Agreement, each of the Parties expressly
agrees that it was prepared by all of the Parties jointly, and that no ambiguities shall be resolved against any Party
on the basis that it was responsible, or primarily responsible for having drafted the License Agreement In addition,
each of the Parties acknowledges that it did not execute this License Agreement under duress, and was
represented by legal counsel in'connection with the preparation of this License Agreement or chose not to engage
the services of such counsel. Further, whenever the context so requires: (a) all words used in the singular shall be
construed to have been used in the plural (and vice versa); (b) each gender shall be construed to include the other
gender; (c) the word "person" shall be construed to include a natural person, corporation, limited liability company
or partnership, firm, joint venture, trust, estate, or any other entity, and (d) the words "and" as well as "or" shall be
construed either disjunctively or conjunctively as necessary to bring within' the scope of any provision of this
License Agreement any person, right, obligation or concept which might otherwise be construed to be outside the
scope of such provision.

Section 22 - Authority to Execute License Agreement: Each person or entity executing this License
Agreement represents that he/she/it is authorized to execute the License Agreement, Each person executing this
License Agreement on behalf of any entity represents that he or she is authorized to execute this License
Agreement on behalf of such entity.

Section 23- Entire License Acjreemenf and Amendment: This License Agreement and any written addendum to
it executed in writing by the Parties constitute(s) the entire agreement between Park District and Carle regarding
the subject matter hereof, and may be changed, modified or amended only by mutual written agreement executed
by Park District and Carle.

Section 24- Time of the essence: Time is of the essence of the performance of the terms of this License
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this License Agreement to be executed effective as the
day and year first'above written.

Champai^p^rk District

ay: ,/-o<^^^-^/y_^.,

Title: Tr6.5i^nf

Date:: \\\z^h I-A) ^
ATTEST:

^h.^/r-,7-. , Secretary

pam\c:gch\cpd\con{racts\Carle Foundation Nospifal.doc



LICENSE AOKEEMENT EXTENSION

THIS EXTENSION OP LICENSE AGREEMENT made and entered mto this 1st
day ofDecemberl, 2011, by and between Champaign Park District and Carle Foundation
Hospital

WHEREAS, both parties have entered into a License Agreement dated the 1
day of December 2008, and

WHEREAS, the said License Agreement expires November 30, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the parties now desire to extend the term of said agreement.
NOW^ THEREFORE, m consideration of the mutual covenants contamed lierein,
It is agreed as follows:

1. The agreement term is hereby extended for a tbiee-year period,
2. All other tenns and conditions of the original License Agreement shall

apply to the Extension period.
3, Monthly compensation for extension period shaU be adjusted 4% per

year,

IN WITNESS 'WHERjBOFP, the parties have set their liands and seals the day and
year fast above written,

.'•,^^,'-^

:-^.^y^\"""^<'^'~:

^---n:^-
.....ffliami:

1 ^f7^.
.,• ...-M -. C,^f~

• :• ^ f;' > \ By''',

CA :^'^/^^^^rh^^^^^M!^^S.//)M/^^
. :>.„,.... •;<;)3ate;*"/^)%%^^^9 ^9//
•::'-i^.^ "'7~

Carle Fomdation Hospital

'B.YJ^^'V^-^^-^-
Title: _^£-^- r>^> ^^r- ,7^, (-^ 5

Date: 0'u^ •2-z-/ Z^/,'



LICENSE AGREEMENT EXTENSION

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT EXTENSION is made, entered into, and effective this 1st

day of December, 2014, by and between the Champaign Park District and The Carle

Foundation.

WHEREAS, the parties entered into a License Agreement dated the 1st day of December

2008;and

WHEREAS, after the initial three (3) year term expired, the first License Agreement

Extension was entered into and expired November 30, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the parties now desire to again extend the term of the License Agreement

pursuant to its terms.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, it is

hereby agreed as follows:

1. The License Agreement term is extended for a further three (3) year term.
2. All other terms and conditions of the License Agreement shall apply to the extension

period.

3. Monthly compensation for the extension period shall be increased by four percent
(4%) per year as set forth in the License Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this document to be executed

effective as of the date and year first above written.

CHAMBAl^J PARK DIST.RI(?-^— THE CARLE^OUNDATION

By: ^^c^fr^ T/- \^^j By:

Titley^lA l ^ Title: ^'^ ^^t-^f- f

Da^/ \t\\(Q\\^ _ Date: 1^ li^



LICENSE AGREEMENT EXTENSION

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT EXTENSION is made, entered into, and effective this 1st
day of December, 2017, by and between the Champaign Park District and The Carle
Foundation.

WHEREAS, the parties entered into a License Agreement dated the 1st day of December
2008;and

WHEREAS, after the initial three (3) year term expired, the first License Agreement
Extension was entered into and expired November 30, 2014 and the second License
Agreement Extension was entered into and expired November 30, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the parties now desire to extend the term of the License Agreement
pursuant to its terms.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, it is
hereby agreed as follows:

1. The License Agreement term is extended for a further seven (7) month term.
2. All other terms and conditions of the License Agreement shall apply to the extension

period.
3. Monthly compensation for the extension period shall be increased by four percent

(4%) annualized for the period hereof as set forth in the License Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this document to be executed
effective as of the date and year first above written.

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT THE CARLE FOUNDATION

By: _ By:
Title: _ Title:
Date: Date:

672423vl



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: November 2, 2017

SUBJECT: Approval to Enter into Phase 1 Design Services Contract with Ratio
Architects for Martens Center at Human Kinetics Park

Backoround

In May 2017 three architecture firms presented qualifications to Champaign Park District project
team for the design of a prospective community center at Human Kinetics Park. Following

deliberation, the Executive Director was asked to negotiate a contract for Phase 1 design

services with RATIO Architects.

Prior Board Action

September 27, 2017 Special Meeting — Board approved a Memorandum of Understanding

among Champaign Park District, Champaign Parks Foundation, and Rainer and Julie S Martens

Foundation to accept a donation of $4.4 million toward future enhancements at Human Kinetics

Park.

Budget Impact
Phase 1 design services include building schematic design and fundraising graphics support.

The $90,000 contract sum will be paid through the Park District's Human Kinetics Fund.

Recommendation

The Park District's Attorney has reviewed the contract. Staff recommends approval and

authorization for the Executive Director to enter into Phase 1 Design Services Contract with

Ratio Architects for Martens Center at Human Kinetics Park.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Andrew Weiss Joe DeLuce

Director of Planning Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



AIA Document B101™ - 2007

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect

AGREEMENT made as ofthe-{ia^Lef4n-the-yetH—«l_.» da'

(In words, indicate day, month and yew^vear)

» in the year «Two Tliousand Seventeen ;»

BETWEEN the Architect's client identified as the Owner:
(Name, legfil-frtatns^-address and other information)

;«Ch^inpai.s]rPark.D]"strict

i7Q6Kenwood Avenue
:Ctiany?abai,_IL 61821

!»

and the Architect:
(Name, legal status^address and other information)

I RATIO Architects. Inc.

130_LNorthNeil^treeL^_SyiteJ02
IChampaisn. 1L 61820

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:

The author of this document
has added information

needed for its completion.

The author may also have
revised the text of the

original AIA standard form.
An Additions and Deletions
Report that notes added
information as well as

revisions to the standard
form text is available from
the author and should be
reviewed.

This document has important

legal consequences.
Consultation with an

attorney is encouraged with
respect to its completion
or modification.

for the following Project:
(Name, location and detailed description)

((North Champaign Community Center, North Market Street. Champaign. 1L 61820, as
Ifurther described by RATIO Architects Design Services Proposal dated August 30,2017
^attached hereto as Exhibit A.

IRAT10 Project No. 17088.000
»

The Owner and Architect agree as follows.

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any
portion of this AIA'" Document

to another electronic file is
prohibited and constitutes a

violation of copyright lans
as set forth in the footer of
this document.

AIA Document BlOl" - 2007 (formerly B151" - 1997) . Copyright 0 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAW Document is profcected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIAy Document/ or any portion of ifc, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 INITIAL INFORMATION

2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES

4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES

5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

6 COST OF THE WORK

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

11 COMPENSATION

12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

E-XHIBff-A—tNIT4AL-INFORIVlA-T40N

ARTICLE 1 INITIAL INFORMATION
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Article 1 and in optional Exhibit A, Initial
Information:

(Complete Exhibit A, Initial Information, and incorporate it into the Agreement at Section 13:2, or state below

Initial Information such as details of the Project's site and program. Owner 's contractors and consultants,

Architect's consultants, 0\vner's budget for the Cost of the Work, authorized representatives, anticipated

procurement method, and other information relevant to the Project.)

«»

§ 1.2 The Owner's anticipated dates for commencement of construction and Substantial Completion of the Work are
set forth below:

.1 Commencement of construction date: To be determined

.2 Substantial Completion date: To^ be determined

« »

§ 1.3 The Owner and Architect may rely^H-tlielmriaUifei-matiei^rBeth-partt&SYheweve-Fri^

iHf&miat'i8iHiMy^Hate44aHy^haHge-aHd^in4ba^-'/eiit^tlie^wfleF^Hd-th€^i'ebitee^hal

sehed?l€Y4lre-Are4Hte€tJ5-se41vk-e&awkbe--AF^httee^s-€0fflpensTirie on the Initial Information.

AIA Document BlOl™ - 2007 (formerly B151m - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction

or distribution of this AIA" Document, or any portion of ifc, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



ARTICLE 2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide the professional services as set forth in this Agreement. The Architect's services
consist of those services performed by the Architect, Architect's employees and Architect's consultants and advisors

(Architect's consultants and advisors being hereinafter collectively referred to as Architect's "consultants") as

described in this Agreement. The services to be provided or furnished by the Architect, its employees and
consultants under this Agreement are sometimes hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Architect's services" or

"Services".

§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care drdmarily provided by
architects practicmg in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances.|The Architect shall
perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and'the.ordefly progress of
the Project.Architect understands and acknowledges that it has been engaged by the Owner to provide !Architect's
Services based, in part. on the Architect's represented character, expertise. experience and qUialifications in

providing architectural services comparable to those to be provided under this Agreement arid on projects

comparable in kind and scope to this Project. The Architect's services shall be performed pfQperly and
expeditiously to permit the orderly and timely progress and proper performance both of the Architect's services and
the Work, consistent with such professional skill, care and diligence and good architectural practices as are

exercised by a competent architect with experience in the design and adminisb'ation of projects oflcomparable kind

and scope to this Project and practicing architecture in the Champaign, Illinois areas (such skill, e&re, diligence and
practices being hereinafter referred to as the "Professional Standard"). I I] r |;

I! .11
§ 2.3 The Architect shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect yvithJrespect to the
Project. All persons connected with the Architect as an officer, employee or agent of or cor&ultaTi't to the Architect,

who are directly in charge of the professional architectural or engineering work performed afe part of Architect's

services, are, and for so long as any Services shall be provided under this Agreement, shall be duly registered and

licensed under and in accordance with Illinois laws regarding the practice of architecture and engineering, as

applicable to this Project, and they and any other consultants selected by the Architect and providing Sfervices with
respect to the Project shall be otherwise qualified and possess the skill and competence required.,toRerfQnTi the

Services properly. The Architect shall be responsible for the acts and omissions ofitsemployfies..afeentsand

consultants, and their respective employees and agents with respect to the Services under this Afir^Ameiit,

§ 2.4 Except with the Owner's knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any
employment, interest or contribution that compromises or would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect's

professional judgment and commitment with respect to this Project.

§ 2.5 The Architect shall maintain the follewing insurance for the duration of Architect's duties as set forth herein
shall_at_np_tune be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the Owner of the docitnients.aythored by the

Archjtectgr its consultants, nor shall anything contained in this Agreement be construed as a Umjtatio'n on, or a

waiv_er_of,,am^i-emedies which the Owner may have at law or in equity for damages sustainelVor'exn^nse incurred

because_Qf,_or arisms out o£ Architect's neeligent errors, omissions, or failure to perform it| Buties'or covenants in

accordance with this Agreement. The grant of various rights to the Owner under this AsreeNenti &nd/or the failure
of the Owner to exercise those rights do not and shall not create any responsibility or liability|in {Ke Owner for any
error or omission of the Architect in the provision of its Services. Notwithstanding this provisiorit the Owner shall
be responsible for all design decisions directed by the Owner over the specific written contrary reeommendation of
the Architect. I I

this Agreement. If any of the requirements set forth below exceed § 2,6 All agreements between the Architect and its
consultants shall be in writing and shall contain such provisions binding the Architect's consultants to the Architect,
reciuiring Architect's consultant's to perform their scope of services in the same manner and to the extent that the

Architect is bound to the Owner in accordance with this Agreement such that the Architect fierforms:;,ils Services in
accordance with this Agreement. The Architect shall tunely pay all sums due to its consultants in ac<;drdance
therewith and shall not cause or permit any liens to be placed by any such consultants againSitHhe property or funds
of the Owner provided Owner has paid Architect the sums due to the Architect's consultant^ tn accordance with this
Agreement; provided that, such sums are not in dispute or Owner is otherwise entitled to witlfhold suel'i sums in

accordance with this Agreement. The Architect will provide Owner current waivers and relVses oPlJ^n from
Architect in account of the payment sought in the invoice, and for Architect's consultants, tKe Architedt will proyide
Owner lien waivers for the prior payment paid to them in the performance of its Services,

AIA Documant B101" - 2007 (formerly B151'" - 1997) . Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA" Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



the types and limits the § 2.7 The Architect has informed tlie Owner that minor imperfections in the instruments of
service prepared by Architect which do not adversely affect the integrity of the Work is typical and expected from
architects performing these types of services. The Architect shall provide such Services required for or associated
with the correction of any such imperfections, including the administration of the corrective work at no cost to the

Owner, as well as pay for the construction costs associated with the corrective work that is not a "betterment" to the

Project for which the Owner would be responsible under applicable Illinois law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Parties acknowledge that minor imperfections in the instruments of service of the Architect prepared by persons
other than the Architect may occur and the Parties agree to attempt to resolve any disputes resulting therefrom in a
fair and equitable manner under the circumstances presented, j

Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall reimburse the § 2.8 The Architect shall furnis|il:a competent and
adequate staff, and contract with competent consultants as necessary for the proper administration, coordination,

supervision and performance of the Architect's services. The Architect's representative shafllnot be changed

without tlie consent of the Owner. unless such person leaves the employ of the Architect, in M?hich event the

substitute must first be approved in writine by the Owner which approval shall not be unreaNnably withheld or
delayed. The Architect agrees that the Architect will change its assistants assigned to providel the Services at the
reasonable request of the Owner, if. in the Owner's reasonable opinion. based on actual instances of deficient

performance, such person's performance does not equal or exceed the Professional Standard, !&r the acts or

omissions of such person are detrimental to the timely and/or proper performance of the AfolTiitefitj's services or the
Work; provided however that, the Owner's exercise of such right or failure to exercise such Hlghj Shall not affect
Architect's responsibility or liability for the proper performance of the Services. The Archifect ajdcepts
responsibility for the acts and omissions of its employees and consultants. The Architect's ijepio]val or replacement

of an employee and/ or consultant pursuant to this provision shall not be deemed an admissiohoflrability on the part
of the Architect. The Architect shall coordinate all aspects of the Architect's services. | '

§ 2.9 Insurance. The Architect fei-any-additional-ee&trshall maintain the following insurance for the duration of this
Agreement .-•'

(Identify types and limits of insurance coverage, and other insurance requirements applicable to the/Agreement, if

any.) / ^ g
.1 General LiabilityLiability. The Architect shall maintain commercial general liability [CGL) and, if

necessary, commercial umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each

occurrence_and $2.000,000 in the aggregate. If sych_CGLjnsurance contains a.g'en^l-al aggregate

limit, it shall apply separately to this proiect/location. CGL insurance shall be WEJtten on Insurance
Services Office (ISO) occurrence form CG 00 01 04 93, or a substitute form providing equivalent
coverage, and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent coritractors,

products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an

uisured contract ('including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract).' Owner shall

be mcluded as an insured under the CGL. using ISO additional insured endor^em^otiC.O 20 10 or a
substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial umbrella! mi|iy.,>'This insurance

shall apply as prunary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self-iiisiUraiicA afforded to

Owner. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL luniting the scbjie of coverage for
liability arising from pollution, explosion, collapse, or underground property Hamafee.

Automobile Liability. The Architect shall maintain business auto liability and, if necessary,
commercial umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each
accident. Such insurance shall cover liability arisine out of any auto. Business.auto insurance shall be

written onjnsurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00,12, CA'QO 20, or a
substitutejorm_providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the politic 'shall bfe endorsed to
proyld^contractual liability coverage equivalent to that provided in the 1990land later; editions ofCA
OOQL - II El

.3 Workers' Compensation. The Architect shall maintain workers compensation a|s required by statute and

employers liability insurance. The commercial umbrella ancl/or employers liability limits shall not be
less_t_han_$LOOO,000 for each accident for bodily injury by accident or for each employee for bodily

AIA Document 8101"' - 2007 (formerly B151"' - 1997) . Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is protecfced by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA& Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9M)AOA)



iniyr'^_bY_disease,J£Qwner has not been included as anjnsyred under the CGL ysm.s; ISO additional

insured endorsement CG 20 10 under the Commercial General and Umbrella Liability Insurance
required in this Contract, the Architect waives all rights against Owner and its officers, officials,
employees, volunteers and agents for recovery of damages arising out of or incident to the Architect's

work.

.4 Professional Liability. The Architect shall maintain professional liability and, if necessary, commercial
umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than S5,000,000 for each wrongful act arising out
of the performance or failure to perform professional services and $5,000,000'aggregate.

General Insurance Provisions i

.1 Evidence of Insurance. Prior to beginning the Services, the Architect shall furnish Ownejrilwith a certificatefs) of
insurance and applicable policy endorsements), executed by a duly authorized representatNeilofeach insurer,

showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth above. All certificates shall pi'Qvide for 30 days'

written notice to Owner prior to the cancellation or material change of any insurance referreti'to therein. Written

notice to Owner shall be by certified mail, return receipt requested. Failure of Owner to demand such certificate,

endorsement or other evidence of full compliance with these insurance requirements or failiyp of Owner to identify
a deficiency from evidence that is provided shall not be construed as a waiver of Architect's obligation to maintain
such insurance. Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, of prohibiting Architect frqm entering the project
site until such certificates or other evidence that insurance has been placed in complete comt)|ianc;e with these
requirements is received and approved by Owner. Failure to maintain the required insurance may fesult in

termination of this Contract at Owner's option. Architect shall provide certified copies of all: insdi'ance; policies

required above within 10 days of Owners written request for said copies. I I

,2 Acceptability of Insurers. For insurance companies vvliich obtain a rating from A.M. Best, that rdtiftg should be

nojess than A VII using the most recent edition of the A.M. Best's Key Rating Guide. If the Best's rating is less

than.A VII pr a Best's rating is not obtained, the Owner has^t^ by an insurer it

deems unacceptable, ,: . i i

r .^ n

.3 Wefkers' CompensationCross-Liability Coverage. If Architect's commercial general liability pblicy does not
contain the standard ISO separation ofinsureds provision, or a substantially sunilar clause, they sHa'll be endorsed to

provide cross-liability coverage, \. i

.4 Professieftal-Liabffity .4 Consultants. The Architect shall cause each consultant employ ecLby.ArcHitect to

purchase and maintain insurance of the type specified above. When requested by the Owner,;Arcl;iitect shall furnish
copies of certificates of insurance evidencing coverage for each consultant. i:;' U'; y

II; h J

§2.10 Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law. the Architect shall indeinnifyl^nd h6ld harmless the
Owner and its commissioners, officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents from and |iga;ihst all claims,

damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to legal fees (attorney's and paralegals' |Ses and court
_^—.„—

costs), arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Architect's services; providedlthat;' any s.uch claim,

damage, loss or expense (i) is attributable to bodily iniury, sickness, disease or death, or injid'y to or destruction of

tangible property, other than the work itself, including the loss of use resulting therefrom and (ii) is caused in whole
or in part by any wrongful or negligent act or omission of the Architect, Architect's consultants, anyone du'ectly or

indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except to the extent it is
caused in whole or in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be cort'sfrued to negate,

abridge, or otherwise jMyce_aji¥_otherrisht or oblisationof^i

or^person described in this Paragraph. Architect shall similarly protect, indemnify and hold add save htu-mless the
Owner, its commissioners, officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents against and !ri3m anylaind all claims,

costs, causes, actions and expenses including but not limited to legal fees, incurred by reasonl|ofArcMifect's breach

pfanvof its obligations under,^ or A^clutect's default of, any provision of the C^ 11 G I

ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES f I
§ 3.1 The Architect's Basic Services consist of those described in Article 3 and include usual and customary
structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Article 3 are Additional

AIA Document B101« - 2007 (formerly BlSl" - 1997). Copyright B 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Infcernational Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIAy Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



Services.Services to be provided by the Architect as described in Architect's Proposal dated August 30, 2017, and

revised May 30, 2017, and this A.s-eement are complimentaiv and siipplementary

of the services describedin, or implied from, all of these documents, taken as a whole and include usual and

customai^ architectural, civil,, stmctural, landscaping, inechanical, and

of conflict between or among the provisions of the foregoing documents relative to each phase of the Project, the

proyisions most favQrable to Qwner shall control,

§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect's services, including any services provided ;t>y Architect's
consultants, as enumerated pursuant to this Agreement, consult with the Owner, research applicable design criteria,

attend Project meetings, communicate with members of the Project team and report progress to the Owner.

§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordmate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner's
consultants. The Architect shall be entitled to reasonably rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and

information furnished by the Owner and the Owner's consultants. The Architect shall provide prompt written notice
to the Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any error, omission or inconsistency in such' sjervices or information.

§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for the Owner's approval a
schedule for the performance of the Architect's services and any of Architect's consultant's jservices. The schedule

mitially shall include anticipated dates for the commencement of construction and for Substantial pompletion of the
Work as set forth in the Initial Information. The schedule shall include allowances for periods oftime required for
the Owner's and Owner's Board of Commissioner's review, for the performance of the Owrie|r's;,consultants, and for

approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Once approved 1py the, Owner, tmie
limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, as determined by O^iei- and pot objected
to by Architect, be exceeded by the Architect or Owner. With the Owner's wntterL approval; the^Architect shall
adjust the schedule, if necessary, necessary as the Project proceeds until the commencement of construction.

§ 3.1.4 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner's directive to third parties or substitution made
without the Architect's j3noi_approval. The Architect's prior knowledge via written notification by the

Owner or other written instrument provided to or prepared by the Architect, of Owner's intehded directive

or substitution and failure to object thereto in writing within three days shall constitute the Architect's
approval of such directive or substitution. E ||

li

§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall, at-appFepilktte-tnnes7-eonteefr4he-gevei:Hmental auth&rities required to. approve the

Construction Documents and the entities pro\4ding utility services to the Project. In designing the.Prqject, the-shall
thoroughly review the Owner's program and other information ftirnished by the Owner and any other information

which the Architect deems necessary or advisable to determine the nature and extent of, and develop solutions to

resolve, any technical or other difficulties or problems in implementing and designins the Project and

achieving successful Project completion consistent with the Owner's stated needs, soals'andlobjectives and the

Project requirements. As part of this process, the Architect will visit the Project site and NCome thoroughly

familiar with existins conditions, includins activities and uses which will continue whilNthel Project is in
prosress. '•: I ;

£ :!

Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements imposed by such governmental autho|'i,ties and by su&h
entities providing utility semeesTThe Architect shall also review and ascertain goveiTimenfal requirements and
utilities requirements applicable to the Architect's Services and the design and construction of the Project including
ascertaining timing considerations for submissions to and review by such entities. The Architect shall notify the
Owner promptly in order not to adversely affect the proposed Project schedule, of (1) any inconsistencies

discovered in the information and (2) any information or consulting services that may be reasonably needed

for the Project. The Architect shall review and discuss with the Owner proposed site use aftd imprAvements;
selection of materials; building systems and equipment; identification of long-lead items; any special, .Sovernmental

or utilities requirements; and timing/scheduling issues. The Architect will conduct such fit'ifther inyestisatiQns,
and recommend to Owner for Owner to conduct such further testing, as necessary or appropridfe, to secure

required governmental approvals, including but not limited to approvals from the City ofj&hampaJin and any
other approvals as required by applicable governmental bodies and to further define Projeft requirements.

The Architect shall be responsible to the Owner for any claims, damages, losses and expenses arjsmg from the

Architect's failure to follow applicable laws, codes and regulations in execution of all of Architect's services

pursuant to this Agreement.

AIA Document B101" - 2007 (formerly B151" - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAW Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA" Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner's responsibility for filing documents
required for the approval of governmental authorities havmg jurisdiction over the PmjeefcPj^jectjticli^lng.byUiot
limited to tlie City ofChampaign and any other filings as required by applicable governmental bodies.

§^l^--ASJ)ajtaLAi"cliitect's_Basic Services, the Architect will conduct^aj^ogram review woijl^hojuvi.tl1

Owner's staff in accordance with Architect's Proposal.

§ 3.2 SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review laws,
codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect's services.

§ 3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner's program, schedule, budget for the Cost
of the Work, Project site, and the proposed procurement or delivery method and other Initial Information, each in
terms of the other, to ascertain the requkements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any
inconsistencies d+sewered-in the information, and (2) other information or consulting services that may be

reasonably needed for the Project.

§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall pi'esert-its-grepare and deliver its written^preliminary evaluation to theiOwner and shall

discuss with the Owner alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project, including the feasibility of
mcorporating envkonmentally responsible design approaches. The Architect shaU-feaeb-aH-yridei-stanAH^-^th-tte

Owner-and Owner shall reach a mutual understanding regarding the requirements of the Project.

§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project's requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall iprepare and present for
the Owner's approval a preliminary design illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components.

§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner's approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design
Documents for the Owner's approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other

documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preluninary building plans, sections and elevations; and may
include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital modeling. Preliminary; selections of
major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing.

§ 3.2.5.1 The Architect shall consider envu-onmentally responsible design alternatives, such as material choices and
building orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that
is consistent with the Owner's program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain other
environmentally responsible design services under Article 4.

§ 3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together
with other considerations based on program and aesthetes^-aesthetics in developing a design for the Project that is
consistent with the Owner's program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit to the Owner an estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with
Section 6.3.

§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner, and request the Owner's

approval.

§-3.3-DES[SN-Di-VB.OP-IVieNT-PHASE-SERViCES
§-^T34-@ase^0H-t'he-O^VHe4'-'^^ppi^Vc4-8f^e'5^®iflarie-Be^sigH-43&e?Bent&,^ffi£l^

aHy^j?^i?i^^i^be-Pm}eet-i:e-qtA'emei^i4s^H<:l4b^bti4g€4^i^the--G&st^Mie-WeFl^ie^Fel^^

Besig4^i-e^^QpHie4rt-Deettffl@flte-f9^tbe-0^vftei^&^ppF0\^l^he-De^i5+^Be^^0pHieiTt^eeiHnentfr^^^

d&serifee the cle^'eiepmeti^^f^e-^ppi^e-ve^-Seh&Hratie-De^i'gH-eee+H'ft&Hts-aftef-s^TtU-eeiisist of dravvmgs-aBd-ethey

deetHfleiits-ffle+t!din^pkiH&,-se-ett9ftfc-e4&varieHS^.-typieal-69iistrHeri

sy&tems4&-'ftx-aHel-<;l@se'i4be4lifr5tee-aH4^ai'aete4:-ef4he-'P^

el^efr-tea^'5tems,--aHd-^€4^^tbe4--^<>fliente-as-may-be-^ppFeppiate-744i€-©e&igi^Bev^^

iHel«de-ettttifl€^pe£+fieafri9Hs4ha^^enriiy-mttjeMflate-i4ate-a?d^^toHs^H^I-e&ta^

§^Y3T2-¥h€-A416hk€e^shaH--update4he-e&t'tfflate--o?4h€--Gest-9f-th8-\\^eriY-

AIA Doaumant BlOl™ - 2007 (formerly 8151™ - 1997). Copyright IB 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING; This AIAS Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction

or distribution of this AIATI Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/201S, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 3.3.3 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any
adjustments to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Owner's approval.

§ 3.4 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE SERVICES
§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner's approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner's authorizatien-ef

any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall
prepare Construction Decuments for the Owner's approval. The Construction Documents sl'jall illustrate and

describe the further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shal] jconsist of Drawings
and Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels of materials and systems and other^equirements for the
construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that in order to construct t|i'e-Work tlpe Contractor

will provide additional information, mcludmg Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and either similjr submittals,
which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6. t\. [ i|

§ 3.4.2 Tlie Architect shall incorporate into the Construetion Decuments the design requirements of governmental
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. ?''

§-3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist th^ipWQer in the
development and prepaFatiefl-ef(l) bidding and procurement information that describes the |ti|m4 place and
conditions of bidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (2) the form of agreement betwqeh tl)^ Owner and
Contractor; and (3) the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary land) pther Conditions).
The Architect shall also compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contrat}: fo|r|Gonstruction and
Specifications and may include bidding requirements and sample forms. '- -• — |

§ 3.4.4 The Architect shall update the estimate for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.4.5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of dn)j adjustments
to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the Owner's

approval.

§ 3.5 BIDDING OR NEGOTIATION PHASE SERVICES E
§ 3.5.1 GENERAL
The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner's
approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining either cqmpetitive
bids or negotiated proposals; (2) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the s|iccessful bid
or proposal, if any; and, (/1) awardmg and preparing contracts for construction. •|

§ 3.5,2 COMPETITIVE BIDDING ,' ';, / /
§ 3.5,2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract D^cuto^ots.

I1 1; '}
4

§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by ! || | j
A — procuring the reproduction of Bidding Documents for distribution to prospective bi^lflers;
72—distributing the Bidding Documents to prospective bidders, requesting their retjajm ijljon completion of

the biddmg process, and maintaining a log of distribution and retrieval and of the hhiounts of
deposits, if any, received from and returned to prospective bidders;

vS—organizing and conducting a pre bid conference for prospective bidders;
i4—preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and

interpretations of the Bidding Documents to all prospective bidders m the fomr.of addenda; and
-S — erganizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently decument(ftg and distributing the

bidding results, as directed by the Owner, f / \ |
j I li

§ 3.5.2.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Bidding Documents pjej-mit substitutions, and
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifymg approved substitutions to all prospective bi44ers.

§ 3.5.3 NEGOTIATED PROPOSALS f [
§ 3.5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements and proposed Contract jDpcumeirtST

§ 3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtammg prop<

AI& Dooument B101™ - 2007 (formarly B151'" - 1997). Copyright E> 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIAK Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



-A — procuring the reproduction of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors, and

requesting their return upon completion of the negotiation process;
-S — organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; and

^3—participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a summary

report of the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner.

§ 3.5.3.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, and
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all prospective confractors.

§ 3.6 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 11
§ 3.6.1 GENERAL E;l - i
§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and Sth^Contrefctor as set
forth below and in AIA Document A201™ 2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Cpgstruction. If the Owner
and Contractor modify AIA Document A201 2007, those modifications shall not affect the architect's services
under this Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect amend this Agreement, j |

li i;

§ 3.6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phqs,e Services. The
Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in t4§ Agreement. The
Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means Jnejlpds, techniques,
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the WorH, n^ shall the

Architect be responsible for the Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance witl-j j[he|rpquirements of the
Contract Documents. The Architect shall be responsible for the Architect's negligent acts oi|(|miji|ions, but shall not
have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contfticfdr or pf any other

persons or entities performing portions of the Work. |

§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.3, the Architect's responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services'(jommences
with the award of the Contract for Construction and terminates on the date the Architect issues the finajl Certificate
for Payment. ;, •'"' .•

§ 3.6.2 EVALUATIONS OF THE WORK f. ||
§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage ofconstruction,lor arf otherwise
required in Section /1.3.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the pbrti&n '^f the Work
completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner itidicgting that the
Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the ArcHi^ect shall not
be required to make exhaustive or continuous on 'site inspections to check the quality or quantity ofth^ Work. On
the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress,and quality of
the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Cpntcact.Dpcuments and
from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects aDdjclefi^iQhc.ies observed in
the Work. I f } ^ ,:

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contra({!t;DQcjuments. Whenever
the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to reiiyire] uispection OF
testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or]no(j {inch Work is
fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a dec|siori1 Inadq in good faith
either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility oftheArcHltect to the
Contractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees or other persons or entities

performing portions of the Workr

§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, andfrequirei^ients of, the

Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect's response td such requests

shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable pr&iuptnesg. I
i! i

§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent ofiM reasohjibly inferable
from the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When mak|i|g such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner arid Contrafc|or, shall not
show partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions ren^eredii^gdod faitb—Fhe
Architect's decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be fmal if consistent with the intent expressed m the
Contract Documents.

AIA Document BlOl" - 2007 (formerly BlSl" - 1997). Copyright S 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 3.6.2.5 Unless the Owner and Contractor designate another person to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, as that

term is defined in A1A Document A201 2007, the Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the
Owner and Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.3 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR
§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such
amounts. The Architect's certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Opjner, based on the
Architect's evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising ^j!e Contractor's
Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect's knowledge, information and belj^f, the Work has
progressed to the pomt indicated and that the quality of the Work is in accordance with the (pntraGt ,
Documents. The foregoing representations are subject (1) to an evaluation of the Work for cpnformande with the
Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, (2) to results of subsequent tests and ins^ctions, (3) to
correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and (4) to |ipecific qualifications
expressed by the Architect. | |i

§ 3.6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Arc^tect has (1) made
exhaustive or continuous on site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2| [reviewed construction
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies ofrequisitions relceive^i from

Subcontractors and material suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiatejtjie <p|3ntractor's right to
payment, or (4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previoi^y }|did on account of
the Contract Sum. S3 | <

|! :. '-t

§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payn^ent.

§ 3.6.1 SUBMITTALS
§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Contractor's submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably dejay or
withhold approval. The Architect's action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance vyith.the approved
submittal schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable pron?ptn?$s while allewmg
sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to permit adequate review, f ;> j |

§ 3.6.4.2 In accordance with the Architect approved submittal schedule, the Architect shall reviev/jijind approve or
take other appropriate action upen the Contractor's submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Datlt, and Samples,

but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design cqncept
expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is not for the purpose of determining the accuracy

and completeness of other information such as dimensions, quantities, and installation or performance"of equipmefit

or systems, which are the Contractor's responsibility. The Architect's review shall not constitute.,appi''c|val of safety

precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction meql-is, methpiis,
techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not inlycatefapproval of an
assembly of which the item is a component. 11 I' /

§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professioq^l d^ign services or
certifications by a design proftssional related to systems, materials or equipment, the Architeb shjill specify the
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Architect stjti'H-re^iewjShop
Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the design professional.jettjined by the
Contractor that bear such professional's seal and signature when submitted to the Architect. The Architect shall be
entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals

performed or provided by such design professionals.

^\

§ 3.6,4.4 Subject to the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall review and respond to if cjuests 'fdir information
about the Contract Documents. The Architect shall set forth in the Contract Documents the Deiquu-em^i|ts for requests
for information. Requests for mformation shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement tHat indicates-the
specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarificatio^ 'request^—Fhe
Architect's response to such requests shall be made in writing within any tune limits agreed [upon, or ptherwise-wtth
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental D^awings-a'nU
Specifications in response to requests for information. L,^_:^:,J

AIA Document BlOl" - 2007 (formerly B151™ - 1997) . Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA& Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 3.6.4.5 The-Architect shall maintain a record ofsubmittnls and copies ofsubmittals supplied by the Contractor in
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Deeuments.

§ 3.6.5 CHANGES IN THE WORK
§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect may authorize mmor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract
Becuments aiMi-de-Het involve afl-adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension oft-he Contract Time. Subject to

the provisions-of Section 4.3, the ArctHteet shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the

Owner's approval and execution -in accordance with the Contract Documents. i

§ 3.6.5.2 The Architect shall maintain records relative to changes in the Work. j 1|

§ 3.6.6 PROJECT COMPLETION I |
§ 3.6,6.1 The Architect shall con4uct inspections to determine the date or dates ofSubstantialjCompletion and the
date of final completieHi-issue Certificates of Substantial Complerien; receive fi-om the Conti^ctor and forward
to the Owner, for the Owner's review and records, written-warranties asd related documents; required by the

Contract Documeftts and assembled by the Contractoi^ and issue-a fmal Certificate for Payment based upei

inspection indicating the Weri^eomplies with the requirements o?the CoFrtract Decuments.

I :1

§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect's inspections shall be conducted whh the-Gwnerto check conformarie'e of'the Work with tlie

requirements of the Contract Doeuments and to verify the accuracy and completeness ofthejlist Submitted by the
Contractor of Weri^4e-be completed or corrected, r I | j

§ 3.6.6.3 When the Work is found to be substantially complete, the Architect shall inform th|e 'Owner about the
balance of the Gentract Sum remaining to be paid the CoHtractoF,-ifleikKiing the amount to be retained from the
Contract Sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the Weri^r

§ 3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following infomation received from the Contractor: (1)
consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release ofretainage or the making pf fma^payment; (2)
affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; p,ncl (3) any other
deeumentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents. ;; / j |

§ 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Ownw^-SQd prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial

Completion, the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Ownfer to review the
facility operations and perfonnancer

ARTICLE 4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES
§ 4.1 Additional Services listed below are not included m Basic Services but may be required for the Pj-oject. Project
if authorized by Owner. The Architect shall provide the listed Additional Services only if specifiGally .designated in
the table below as the Architect's responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as^prOvided in
Section 11.2. j'j | ;'

(Designate the Additional Services the Architect shall provide in the second column of the table below. In the third
column indicate whether the service description is located in Section 4.2 or in an attached exhibif. If in an exhibit,
identify the exhibit.) j: ii ; |

Additional Semees ResponsibUity
(Architect, O^WP

or Not Provided)

Loeattw-ef-SeFvice Descripti&fl
(Section 4.2 below or in an

exhibit attached to this
^eeunicnt and identified below)

§-4T-M—Programming (B202TM 2009)

§ 4,1.2 Multiple preliminary designs
§ 4.1.3 —Measured drawings

§-4.^4- Existing facilities surveys
§ 4,1.5 —Site Evakiation and Plannmg (B203™ 2007)
<h4v4^—Building InfoFmation Modelmg (E202TM
300^
§ 4,1.7 —Civil engineering

§ 4.1.8 Landscape design

AIA Document B101™ - 2007 (formerly BlSl" - 1997). Copyright 0 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA" Document is protecfced by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of" this AIAW Document/ or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)

11



§-44.9—-Are-lHte-etufal4tttei4ei^e-sigH-^B-25.2.I&L-3^0-?-)

§-4.4.49—Vx4u<^AHa4ysifr(B3&4™--2-oo?-)

§-444-1—&etoye£l-eest-estHHatmg

§-W12--
-2-008)

^H-&ke-Pfe}e6^-Repre5€fltat'k>H-(S307-?TM

§-4r4^ GeFrfemed-eeHsfruetien-decuments

^-4A^ V-s-Be-&ti?He44teeeKi-di'awings

§ 4.1.1-5 —As-Geftstoteteel-Reeord drawings

§-444^ Pest-eeeupafley-e-valuatieH

§-4r'M-7-— Facility SuppeFl-SeFwces (B21^IM-599-7)

§-4r-1^ S—T©ffiffit-Fel iervices

§-444^- >H-of 0\VHei'2s-eeHsukants

§-44^6- iecommunications/datrKie&igH

§-44.2^-

30&7)
-Seeurity-Ev»kiarieH-aH£l-P)rt+WHig-<B306T&AI_

^-44^2— Commissionin&<B^4iM-2e0^
§-44.23-

de-sigfi

-Extensi ve envifemnefttetiy^e&peHsiye

§-4.1.24 -fcEED-a-GerttfrearioR-(B5-14™-^043)

^-44^5- i&t-ti-ae^desigfi-sei^ees-

§-44.56—H+&terie-Pre-s<FvarieH-(e3^iM-^00'?^

§ 4.1.27 —FuFmtor^-Funnstnn-g-ST-aHd-Equtpffleflt

De&4gH (B253™ 200^

Additional Services Responsibility
(Architect, Owner

or blank ifNof
Provided^

Location of Service Description
(Section 4.2 below or in un

exhibit attached 1o_ fhj_s

document and identified belo^v)

§ 4.1.1 Programming

§ 4.1.2 Multiple preliminary designs
§4.1.3 Measured drawings

§ 4.1.4 Existing facilities surveys
§ 4.1.5 Site Evaluation and Planning (B203™-2007)

§ 4.1.6 Building information modeling
§4.1.7 Civil engineering
§ 4,1.8 Landscape

§ 4.1.9 Architectural Interior Design (B252™-2007)
§ 4.1.10 Value Analysis CB204™-2007)

§ 4.1.11 Detailed cost estimatins
§ 4.1.12 Additional On-site project representation

§ 4.1.13 __CpnfoiTned construction documents

§ 4.1.14 As-designed record drawings

§ 4.1.15 As-constructed record drawings

§ 4,1.16 Post occupancy evaluation

§ 4,1.17 Facility Support Services (B2 10™-2_Q07)
§ 4.1.18 Tenant-related services

§ 4.1.19 Coordination of Owner's consultants

§ 4.1.20 Telecommunications/data design

§ 4,1.21 Security Evaluation and Planning (B206™-
2007)

§ 4.1.22 Commissioning (B211™-2007)

§ 4.1.23 Extensive envu'oiunentally responsible

design
§ 4.1.24 LEED* Certification (B214™-2007)
§ 4.1.25 Fast-track design services

§ 4.1.26 Historic Preservation (B205™-2007)

Architect

'Owner

i Architect
iArchitect

! Architect

^Architect
': Architect

Exhibit A

Exhibit A !
Exhibit A
Exhibit A

! Exhibit A
'Exhibit A

AIA Document BlOl™ - 2007 (formerly B151BI - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internafcional Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction

or distribution of this AIA& Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)

12



§ 4,1.27 Furniture. Finislu'ngs, and Equipment Design

(B253™-2007)

§ 4.2 Insert a description of each Additional Service designated in Section 4.1 as the Architect's responsibility, if not
further described in an exhibit attached to this document.

«»Reference Exhibit AJ'or_descrifition,

§ 4.3 Additional Services may be provided after execution of this AgFeement^Agreeinent andlafter the Instruments
of Services are in final form, without invalidating the Agreement. Except for services required due to the fault of the
Architect, any Additional Services provided in accordance with this Section 4.3 shall entitle'the Architect to
compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an appropriate adjustment in the Architect's schedule.

§ 4.3.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner
with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect shall not
proceed to provide the following services until the Architect receives the Owner's written authorization:

.1 Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given by
the Owner, or a material change in the Project including, but not limited to, size, quality, complexity,
the Owner's schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery method;

.2 Services necessitated by the Owner's request for extensive envu-onmentally responsible design

alternatives, such as unique system designs, in-depth material research, energyl modeling, or-?E&®

LEED'8 certification; |
.3 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by the enactment or

revision of codes, laws or regulations or official mt&FpwtetieHs^interpretations unless Architect knew

of or should have reasonably known or expected said enactments or revisions in accoi-diince with the

Professional Standard of Care;

.4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered m a tunely manner or any other failure of

performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner's consultants or contractors; |

.5 Preparing digital data for transmission to the Owner's consultants and contractors, or to other Owner

authorized recipients;
.6 pFeparariei:i^i^^gft^w£l^e&uffletrtari«H-fe^T^en^e^d^i--prapQsah^qties^rep&sN^-)^e^vw

PrepaFat4eFi-feF,-aH4-attemkmce at, a public presentation, meeting or heamig^

^—Preparation for, and attendance at a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where the

Architect is party thereto;
v9—Ev{4tttrt4on of the qualifieations ofbiddei's-orpeyseRS-providiH^-pFeposals;

AQ — 7_Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire e^ethe^eaase-4iH4ng

eeft5tFttet4eHT-erd urine construction.

.41—A^st{}n€e-te4lie4ftkiTil'Beei&teH'-Mak'&h-tf-&tbe-F-4haH-t'he-A-rc-hiJteetT.8 Provitling: services to obtain

variances of current standards of authorities having juriscliction. including bujldine and fire codes,

goveiii^ental_cleYelQpment_standaix^.^omn^^^^^^^

§ 4.3.2 To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall prevKle tlie ffrllevwHg-A^ktena-l-Sewiees^
fiotify the Q^^Ir^eFJ^^4ri^-4•ease^wtb^^-pt•emptness-,-pl•omptly notify Owner if any of the followine; Additional Services

are required, and explain the facts and cu'cumstances giving rise to the need. If the Owner subsequently determines

that all or parts of those services are not required, the Owner shall give prompt written notice to the Architect, and
the Owner shall have no further obligation to compensate the Architect for those se-rvtee&^ervlces. Architect shall

provide the following Additional Services only_ypon_Qwne_rs._ag]3royaL

.1 Reviewing a Contractor's submittal out of sequence from the submittal schedule agreed to by the
Architect; i

.2 Respondmg to the Contractor's ?;e]3eatec[requests for information that are not prepared in accordance

with the Contract Documents or where sucli requests are made outsjde the normal and custom

practice when such information is available to the Contractor from a careful study and comparison of
the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided information, C'ontractor-prepared

coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation; ; ;

.3 Preparmg Change Orders and Construction Change Directives that require evaluation of Contractor's

proposals and supporting data, or the preparation or revision of Instruments of Service;

.4 -&vak+atm^-afre-xtenswe-iHimber efClaim5-as4h€ Initial-DecisioH-Makei'?

AIA Document B101™ - 2007 (formerly B151" - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA& Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under fche law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



T§—Evaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner or Contractor and making subsequent revisions to

Instruments of Service resulting therefrom; or

^6—.5 To the extent the Architect's Basic Services are affected, providing Construction Phase Services 60

days after (1) the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or (2) the anticipated date of Substantial
Completion identified in Initial Information, whichever is earlier.

§ 4.3.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exe-e-e4mg-th€--l'imtte-s€fr4'ert-li-be-l0'\'i'-a-s-AddtfieHal

Se4'viees-Wlien4he-tHntt&bele^v-aF€-Feaeiie^-tbe^H^Hte^4-sliaU-4TOri^-only^^^^^^ Owner:

-A — - ( ) i:&\'4eM's-ef-erieh-&h9p-Di:awiftg^-PFoelu&t-Data-kem, sainple-an{l-siFfryai;-5ttl?{H'k4a4-eFthe-€eirtraeter

-3. — (--)^4^t^e-t4ie^t€-b-)^he^-FelHteet-ovei^h€^luratieH-&f4he^i-ejeet-4tH:iHg-e0BstF^^

;3—-4^^wpeet-i0n5^eF^y-pei4i9H^f4heA^^t(^@4e^Fmme^\4iet4ie^^?h-pei4ieH-ef4he-We

syb&teHria}^^eH^lete4H-aeee^FdaHee^¥t4i4be-re^uireinetrts-<rf-tbe--GoHtrae^60eiim&rts

;4—•-(^^n-&peettOHS-fei^ny^ert4eFH3j^he-\\'reFl^-te-det^miifle-^if^l-eemp}€-ti0H

§-4A4-I-f4h€^eiLv-i6€fre0ve-re£l^y^lHS-A^i'e-e4ne4it-have4iet-beeH^eiflpl@t€£h\4tliiH-—^^^

Agt^em@Hty4hTOHglHi&-fa4:^ef-the-Ai^ute-c4y-e-xte-RH&n-&f44w-Arehit€e4'^-ser^e

€empefisate<:l-asAddi:t4&Hal-S@H4ees7-

ARTICLE 5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES I
§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the
Owner's objectives, schedule, constramts and criteria, mcluding space requirements and relationships, flexibility,

expandability, special equipment, systems and site requirements. Within a reasonable time not less thanj5 days
after receipt of a written request from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested information as necessary
and relevant for the Architect to e¥ahratey-g+ve4wrie€-ef-eF-enforce lien rightevevaluate.

§ 5.2 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner's budget for the Project, including (1) the budget
for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner's other costs; and, (3) reasonable contingencies
related to all of these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner's budget for the Cost of the
Work, the Owner shall notify the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall thereafter agree to a corresponding
change in the Project's scope and quality. I ::

§ 5.3 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner's behalf with respect to the
Project.T4i€-<^\VHei^ba^l4-eHdeF-deeisiefl5-and-appi'o^V€-4ie-Arehiteet-'-s-subnHttals~H

av0y^+?reas©nable^i^ay4i^he-^H:ieF^Hd^equeiifel-pH3gi:sss-e^the-Afehit^et^s-seH4eesT

§ 5.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for
the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands;
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and

contours of the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildmgs, other improvements

and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, iabove and below
grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to?a Project benchmark.

§ 5,5 The-Unless otherwise specified, the Owner shall furnish services ofgeotechnical engineers, which may include
but are not limited to test bormgs, test pits, determinations of soil bearmg values, percolation tests, evaluations of

hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations

for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations.

§ 5.6 The Owner shall coordmate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect.
Upon the Architect's request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the contracts lietween the
Owner and the Owner's consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated

in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional Service, when the ArcHitect requests
such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of the Project. The Owner shall
requu-e that its consultants maintain professional liability insurance as appropriate to the services provided.

§ 5.7 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as
structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials.

AIA Document B101™ - 2007 (formarly B151™ - 1997). Copyright E 1974, 197S, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING; This AIA^ Document is protected by U.S. Copyrighb Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction

or distribution of this AIA'" Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted fco

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 5.8 The Owner shall famish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner's needs and interests. Arclutecl_hereby_agrees_to

cooperate with Owner's accountants and auditors and to maintain financial records in accQrdancevvith_this

Agreement.

§5.9Tl?^n4W^^U^i'evi4e^romp^\'Htte?^ehe€-te^h^-Ai^kee^i^^e-<>iVHei^eeoffle^^

£k^ee^-w'Ae^re}€64',-HK4wlfflg^Fret:&^ffitS54eHS^F4fteeHStstenetes^i^i€-AFelriteet'^ ofSe-meer

§-540-Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, or when du-ect communications have been specially

authorized, the Owner shall endeavor to communicate with the G^Rtraetw-Architect and the: Architect's consultants

through the Architect about matters arising out of or relatmg to the-GeHtt:ae4-Be&iiffle-Hte—Fhe-O^TOeil^hxd4-pi:einp^

this Agreement. The Owner shall notify the Architect of any direct communications that may; affect the Architect's
services, r ;

§--5.4-1 Befoi^e?teet^Hg4be^eirt-i:a£4^F'€^H'sti^&tteH^-t4ie-(^vvHeF-sht^l^^0FAHate-'tbe-Areh^c4^-d^

responsibilities set forth in the-GeHtract fei'-GeHstruction-w'ith the A+-eh4teetls-sep»4ees-sefr-fet4h-iH4hi5-Agreefl:ieftt^

The-Owflw-shall provkle-the Arclutect a copy of the executed-agreement betweefi4he-OwHei-fm4-Gentetetei:;

;iHelydiHg-the-Ge-Hei^-GeH4itieiw-&f-t+ie-Gefftrae^fef-GeHshlne+ioH7- ;

§ 5^2-5AO_The Owner shall provide the Architect and Architect's consultants access to the I>roject site prior to
commencement of the Weri^ffid^^^ebUga^t^e-Goiiteie4&F4e^Fm4de-the'Af6h+te6^ae€€^^-N^-W^^^

+t-4s-4H^H-'eparatieH-ei^-pFegi^essTWorl^ ; ;

ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK
§ 6.1 FeF-pwpeses-ef4l:us Agreement^Subiect to the Exhibit "A" limitations and the condition that thisrAgreement is

for Schematic Design Services, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all elements of
the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include contractors' general conditions easts, ovei+iead
afl4-preftt-and costs. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the Architect, the|costs of the land,

rights-of-way, financmg, contingencies for changes in the Work or other costs that are the responsibility of the
Owner.

§ 6.2 The Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and may be adjusted
throughout the Project as required under Sections 5.2, 6.4 and 6.5. Evaluations of the Owner's budget for the Cost of

the Work, the preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work and updated estimates of the Cost of the Work prepared
by the Architect, represent the Architect's judgment as a design professional. It is recognized, however, that neither
the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, materials or equipment; the Contractor's methods of
determining bid prices; or competitive bidding, market or negotiating conditions. Accordmgly, the Architect cannot
and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner's budget for the Cost
of the Work or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work or evaluation prepared or agreed to by the Architect.

§ 6.3 In preparing estimates of the Cost of Work, the Arehite-e^baU-be-per4y?tt©44e-Architect, upon Owners

approval, shall be permitted to: i) include contingencies for design, biddmg and price escalation; ite-u)_determme
what materials, equipment, component systems and types of construction are to be included |in the Gontract
Documents; te-make reasonable adjustments in the program and scope of the Project; aH4-teyu}Jnclude in the
Contract Documents alternate bids as may be necessary to adjust the estimated Cost of the Work to meet the
Owner's budget for the Cost of the W<>ri^-¥he-ArelHteet'l&^-s4mate4?f'4lie-Gest-ef4b^-Wepl^shaH-be--base<l-Work;

and iv) base the Cost of Work _on current area, volume or similar conceptual estimating techniques.tfAe-Owne^

F©que&ts^etette4^^&^estiffia^Hg-5€^¥ie-e-s,-Ae-ATehitec4-^a41-pw\4de-&ueh^en4£es^^^

At4iel<^(-

§ 6.4 tfSubject to the condition that this Agreement is for Schematic Design Services, ifthejBidding pr Negotiation
Phase has not commenced within 90 days after the Architect submits the Construction Documents to the Owner,
through no fault of the Architect, the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work shall be adjusted to reflect changes in
the general level of prices m the applicable construction market.

§ 6.5 If at any time the Architect's estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner's budget for the Cost of the
Work, the Architect shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project's size, quality or

AIA Document BlOl™ - 2007 (formerly B15101 - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction

or distribution of this AIA1' Document, or any porfcion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such
adjustments.which shall be evaluated by the Owner.

§ 6,6 tf Subject to the condition that this Agreement is for Schematic Design Services, if the Owner's budget for the
Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase Services is exceeded by the lowest bona
fide bid or negotiated proposal, the Owner shall

,1 give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work;
,2 authorize rebidding or renegotiating of the Project within a reasonable time; ;j
.3 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5; |
.4 m consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as requu-ed to reduce

the Cost of the Work; or ; i; -

.5 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative. | I

§ 6.7 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.6.4, the Architect, without additional compensation, shall
modify the Construction Documents as necessary to comply with the Owner's budget for th^ |Cost of the Work at the
conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase Services, or the budget as adjusted under Section 6.6.1 .fhe

Architect's modification of the Construetien-Documents shall be the limit of the Architect's;rppoHsibility under this

ARTICLE 7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES \ | j i
§ 7.1 The Architee^ftiHl-the-Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or ajiiy o^her information, the

transmitting party is the copyright owfier of such information or has permission from the copyrigl1|t owner to
transmit such information for its use on the Project. If the Owner and Architect intend to transmit Instruments-ef

Sewree-eF-afly-etbei-mfennation •oi-decuinentation in digital fonn, tliey shall endeavor to establish necjessary

protocols governmg such transmis&iefiSrl Architect hereby agrees and acknowledses that: 1) All title, ownership

and copyright privileges to all drawings, plans, specifications and other documents prepared by the Architect in
connection with the Project fwith the exception of standard design elements, architectural details, arid industry or
trade specifications which are not unique to the Owner or to

§ 7.2 The Architect and the Architect's consultants shall-be-deemed the authors and owners ;6fthe(4 respective

Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all comrrtftrt la% statutory and
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to |neet offieral
regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be constt-ued^as publication

in derogation of the reserved rights of the Architect and the Architect's consultants.the Owner's business), are and

shall be solely in the Owner; 2) to the extent that the Instruments of Services and any other Public Materials, are not

Owner's property. Architect hereby assigns its rights therein, whether under patent, copyright, trade secret or

trademark law, and including moral rights, in perpetuity or for the longest period otherwise pennittedby law, to

Owner with the understanding, acknowledgment and agreement that Owner can effectively eranti.a..ftQrt-exclusive,

perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, paid-up, worldwide, sublicenseable license to use, copy :bf publish the Public

Materials by any means or media in connection with any activity in accordance with this A.^rfeenient.

§ 7.3 Upon execution of this Agreement, the Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive Ijcensdto use the

Architect's Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using,:'ma:i(itaining, altering

and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, inQludmg-prqmpt payment
of all sums when due, under this Agreement. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusiv^ licensesi {rom the

Architect's consultants coasistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to

authorize the Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers, as well as the

Owner's consultants and separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the Instruments ofService solely

and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the Architect rightfully terminates
this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9/1, the license granted in this Section 7.3 shall terminate.Architect
agrees, when requested by the Owner, to execute immediately any documents which evidence and acldiowledge the

ownership of all such drawings, plans, specifications_andpthei\dQcuments_m the Owner. ReriroduciBl^ copies of all

drawings and specifications and all other such materials shall, to the extent not previously delivered, be delivered
promptly to the Owner upon demand and payment in full by Owner of all amounts due ArcHijtect in afceordance with
this Agreement on outstanding invoices received from the Architect and thereafter may be used rby=thte'Owner in

whole or in part or in modified form for such purposes as the Owner may deem advisable. Without further
employment of, or payment of additional compensation to. the Architect or anyone retained by the Architect.

AIA Documant B101™ - 2007 (formerly BlSl™ - 1997) . Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA& Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 7.3.1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the author of the Instruments of

Service, the Owner releases the Architect and Architect's consultants) from all claims and causes of action arising

from such uses. The Owner, to tlie extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Architect and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes

of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner's use of

the Instruments of Service under this Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section 7.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner
rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9 A. In the event that Owner is named as a defendant in
a lawsuit or other proceeding alleging a violation of a patent, trademark, copyrightor other form of intellectual

propeity right, m connection with an item included in the specifications for the.Work prepareti by the Architect, or

in any promotional materials prepared and used by the Architect referencin£Lthe_B'oiect, Arichitect shall defend
and indemnify and hold harmless Owner against and from any damages, judgments, costs aricLexpenses suffered or

incurred by them in connection therewith. I
I .:

§ 7.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, ne-ether license or right shall be deemeid granted or implied
uflder this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license

granted herein to another party witheut-tbe-priei-written agreement oftlie Architeet. Any unauthorized use of the

Instruments of Service shall be at the OwneFls-sole risk and without liability to the Architec^nd the Architect's
consultants.§7.2 Submission or distribution of documents tojTieet^fficiairegulatory requireinentslor for similar
purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication in derogation of'the|c|)wner's or
Architect's reserved rights. 11 '!;

1 I 1

ARTICLE 8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 11 |
§ 8.1 GENERAL | ' ,
§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in: contract, tort, or
otherwise, against the other arismg out of or related to this Agreement in accordance with the requirements of the
method of binding dispute resolution selected in this Agreement withm the period specified by applicable law, but in
any case-ne^nere than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. law. The Owner and Architect

waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 8.1.1.

J i:

§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property' insurance, the Owner and Architect waivea\\ rights against

each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents and employees of the other for damages, ;except such

rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insuranee-as set forth This Agreement shall be.gbVamed by the law
of the State of Illinois. 1'.. (

in A1A. Deeument A201 2007, General Conditions of § 8.1.3 Any suit or action arising under this Agreement shall
be commenced in the Circuit Court ofChampaign County, Illinois.

the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of the coritractbrs,

consultants, agents and employees of any of them sunilar waivers in favor of the other parties.'eriiirtierated

to-eiftS 8.1.4 The Architect acknowledges that the Owner is a local government unit and a.areesj that any claim

made by the Architect arising out of any act or omission of any commissioner, director, officer or.employee of

Owner, in execution or performance of this Agreement, shall be made against the i!!

§ 8.1.3 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for clauns, disputes or other|i<hatters-iro question

arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without lunitation, to all|consequential
damages due to either party's termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7.Owner

and not against such commissioner, director, officer or employee. The Owner acknowledges that the__Architect is a

corporation and agrees that any claim made by the Owner arising out of this Agreement shall be made_against the

Architect and not against any director, officer or employee of the Architect. ,;';

§ 8.2 MED1AT10NDISPUTE RESOLUTION ji ; |

§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this [Agreement shall be
subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates related to
or is the subject of a lien arising out of the Architect's services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with
applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the_matter by mediation
or by binding dispute resolution.resolution set forth in Section 8.2.4.

AIA Documant B101"* - 2007 (formerly B151™ - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The Bmerican Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIAB Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question

between them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the
American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in
effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other
party to the Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be
made concurrently with the filing of a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution
but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall
be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period
by agreement of the parties or court order.Ifan arbitrarieH-pi'eee€dtiig-is-&taye4-pursuant;t6 this sectieB^the

fflay-HOHet-heless-ppeeeed to the seleerien oftlie arbitratei:(s}-aH4-agi:ee-ypen a schedule for later-praeeedmgSr

§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in
the place where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached

in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding
dispute resolution shall be the following:
(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution below,
or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than HfigatiQn, the dispute will
be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction.) I ! '

[—K __ |»] Arbitration pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement

[ —«X_J»] Litigation m a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to Article 8.

[4-«_^»] Other (Specify) |

§_§^-ARBff-RAT40N
ARTICLE 9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION I
§ 8A4-Ifthe parties have-seleeted arbitration as the-mrtbed for bifldmg disptrte resoluti&f)4H4his-Agi-eement, any

}sptrte-e}L-etbei-iHatteHn-<}yestion arising out o^F4^4ate44e-rti4s-AgFeemeH^&ub^eMe^4Hrt-i?^-eselve4-by;

mediation shall be subject to ariM-tetien-which, imless the parties mutually agyee-ethwwise, shall be administered by

tbe-American Arbitration Assoeiati&H-iB-accordanee-wtth-its Construeti&ft-]fldystp»' ArbitratioH-Rutes-m effect OM4):ie

date of this Agreement. A deinafid for arbitration shall be made in writing^ieti-vered to the other party.to this
Ag^^HieH^^^-ffleel-witb-the^etseH^F^rt+^dfium&terit^^w-ai^ttoheft.-Q.^ Unless Owner is entitled to

withhold payment in accordance with this Agreement, ••' ,'; ; .;

§ 8.3,1.1 A defflaml^ei-aFbfe-ation shall be maeie-fie earlier than-eefteun-ently-with the filing-&f:-iH:equesfr4ei:

mediation, but in no evea^&hati it be made after the date when the institutieH-of legal or equitable proceedmgs-basefi

on the claim, dispute or other mattei-ffl-qwstion would be barred by the appHeaMe statute of |imitptions. For statute

ef4iffHtattesfr^wp&se-&-re-€eii^-e^a-written demand for arbttrarien-by the person or entity adnhinis|ering4he

aArt'ratt9H-^ha^^eeHsritat€^be4Hs(Uutien^f4egal^^eqiHte^^pree-e€-dtt^s4^sed-^^

fflattep-m-^uesfteHT ; -

§-8.3.2 The foregoing agreement-te-ariMtete and other agreements to arbitrate vvkh-an-additional person or entity

dtriy-eeH-sente4-te-by-part4es-4o this Agreement shaU-be-speetfieatty-enferceable in accordance with appl-ieable-ten^-m

any cmti:t-havmg4w4s<;tlet'lett4heree^

§-§.3T3-:Fhe-awLaKl-reHdeFe-4-by4he arbitratei^^raU-be-fffia^aH4jydgH:tentmay43e^Htere<l-ypen'4t4H-'a€€ei-'£teHee

with applicable law in afi^court having jurisdiction thereof I : r

§-§.3.4-CONSOLIDATION-OR-<J01NOER . | !; |
§ 8.3,4.1 Either party, -at-ks-sele discreti&n, may consolidate-TiH-afbteit4eH-eeH€itiet€d under-this Agreeinent wth

any-ether arbitration to which it is a-party prowded tl-iat (4^ tlie arbitration agreement gw^-riing the-other arbitratien

pemzks consolidation; (2) th€-aTNtertieFis4e-b&-eeftseti€lated substantially in\te4ve-eemmen questions of law or fact;

and (3) the aAifr^ien&-'effl^l&y-fflat^^ly^k^M^'e€edut:al^t}es^H^He4hed^eF-seteeftRg^FNto^w^

AIA Document BlOl" - 2007 (formerly B151™ - 1997). Copyright S 1374, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The Bmerican Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA& Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/201B, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 8.3.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include byjoinder persons or entities substantially involved in a
eemmon question of law or fact whose presence is requ+pe^i-if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitratiofi,

pmv4ded4bat-the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an
additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question

not described-in the written consent.

§ 8.3.4.3 The-Ownei-atKl Architect grant to any person or entky-made a party to an arbitration cofiducted undei:4his

Section 8.3, whether byjoinder or consolidation, the same rights ofjoinder and consolidatio^as the Owner and
Architect under this Agreement. I |

ARTICLE 9 —^ERWNATtON-OR SUSPENSION | j
§ 9.1 Ifthe-Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be
considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect's optioiii cause for suspension

of performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give
seven days' written notice to the Owner before suspending services. ln4be-event of a susperisien-ef services, the

Awhitect shall have no liab+tity-to the Owner for delay or-damage caused tlie Owner beeaus^.ofsucli suspension of

services. Unless payment in full is received by the Architect within seven days of the date ofhotide, the suspension
shall take effect without further notice. Before resuming services, the Architect shall be paidialllstems-dye-prierte
suspension and any expenses iflcurred in the inten'uptioH-afid resuwprion of the Architect's ^e|rvije^s-undisputed

sums due prior to suspension. | | |

The-Afchitect's fees for the remaining-se-Fvices and the Time-sebedules shall be equitably adjusted.5 9.2 The Owner

may suspend Architect's services or the Project at Owner's convenience and without cause at any time;

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, upon written notice to Architect. If the Owner suspends the Project for
more than thirty consecutive days, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of such
suspension. When the Project is resumed, tbe Architect shall be compensated for expenses incuiTed in the

tirtefraptieH-aft^-resumption of the Architect's services. The-Architect's fees for the remaining ser,yices and the time

schedules shall be equitably adjusted.for the performance of Architect's services shall be eqilitably adjusted, if and
as appropriate given the stage of the Project at the time of suspension and resumption, and reason fpr the

suspension. No adjustment shall be made if the suspension is attributable to the Architect's failurd jto perform the
services in accordance with this Agreement, for breach by the Architect of any provision ofthis'Aei'eement, or for

any other reason which is the fault of the Architect,^

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative consecutive days for reasons other than the fault
of the Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than sewfl-fourteen days' written
notice. , ;, ,;; ;

§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice should the other party
fail substantially to in the event the other party fails to substantially perform in accordance iwiththe terms of this
Agreement through no fault of the party initiating the termmation. || |

§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice'to ffie Architect for the
Owner's convenience and without cause. ; I

§ 9.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Architect, the Architect shall be compensated for services
performed prior to termmation, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and all Termination Expenses as
defined in Section 9.7.excluding overhead and profit. , ,

§ 9.7 Termination Expenses are in addition to compensation for the Architect's services andlliclude
expenses-dtreetfy attributable to termination for wlueh the Architect is not othwwisel compensated, plus-an

amount for the Architect's anticipated profit on the value of the services ne^-perfbFft:fed-by4Ke> Architect.If

the Architect is adjudged as bankrupt, or makes a general assignment for the benefttjofits ci'eeiitors, or if a
receiver is appointed on account of the Architect's insolvency, or if any provision df the bankruptcy law is

mvoked by or against the Architect, or if the Architect persistently or repeatedly refuses or fails (except in
cases for which extension of time is provided), to perform the Services in accordance with the Agreement,

then notwithstanding any other rights or remedies granted the Owner, the Owner may, without prejudice to

AIA Document B101- - 2007 (formarly B151" - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Infcernational Treafcies. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA& Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extant possible under tha law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9AOAOA)



any other right or remedy, (i) terminate the employment of the Architect and/or (ii) finish the Services by
whatever method the Owner may deem expedient. In such case. the Architect shall not be entitled to

receive any further payment until the Services are finished and the Owiierjnay_be_eiLtj.tledJo_recoYer_a.i_id

deduct from any remaining amounts due Architect all damages allowed by law.

§ 9.8 The Owner's rights to use the Architect's Instruments of Service in the event of a termifiatien oftlHS

Agi--eemeft^aF&^e^fei4h4frArti6l€-7-and-Seet4en 11.^Promptly upon the termination of this Agreement or

the Architect's Services and payment in full of all outstandmgjnvoices received from the Architect and not

in dispute, the Architect shall deliver to the Owner copies of all documents preparetf'by Architect in the
performance of its Services under this Agreement, includmg_\vithoyt limitation all Drawings and

specifications, and all models prepared by the Architect for the Project prior to the effective date of
termination, so as to avoid any delay or increased cost of the Project. I '

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS I
§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the pteee-whei-e-the-Project is located, except that if the
parties have s&leete^-ai'bitratieH-as-the-methed-e^binding dtspnte-reselytieft,-4b€-Federal Arbitration Act shall govern

Seetien 8.3.State of Illinois. Intentionally deleted.

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A201-2007, General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. '

§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal

representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the
written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for
the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner's rights and obligations under this Agreement.

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests
the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the
Architect for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or
consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement.

§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor
of a third party against either the Owner or Architect. \

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery,
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any

form at the Project site. Architect shall report to Owner any hazardous materials disco veredlby Architect at the
Project site. I

§ 10.7 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations ofthe;design of the
Project among the Architect's promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be; given reasonable
access to the completed Project to make such i'epresentarieH&-representations at no additional co$f to Architect.

However, the Architect's materials shall not include the Owner's confidential or proprietary information if the
Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of the specific information considered by the Owner to be
confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall may in its sole discretion _provide professional credit for the Architect
in the Owner's promotional materials for the Project-

§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives iuformation speeifieaU^considered and designated by the other party as
i'eea&ieBt4al" or "business-pTOprietary,'' "confidential" or "business proprietary," the receiving party .shall keep such

information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person except to (1) its'employees, (2) those
who need to know the content of such information in order to perform services or construction solely :and

exclusively for the Project, eF-and_(3) its consultants and contractors whose contracts include similar restrictions on

the use of confidential wrfeffiiaheftTinformation. as the case may be. Furthermore, Architect or Owner shall not

withhold such information if, in doing so, would violate the law or create a risk of significant harm to the
public. The Architect shall require of the Architect's consultants similar agreements to maintain the confidentiality
of information considered as "confidential" or "business proprietary" by Owner.

AIA Document BlOl™ - 2007 (formerly B151" - 1997). Copyright E 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIAX Document, or any portion of it, may resulfc in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018,. and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 10.9 Independent Contractor. The Architect agrees that all Services performed under this Agreement are being
performed by Architect as an independent contractor and not as an employee or agent of Owner. This Agreement js

not intended to constitute, create, give rise to or otherwise recognize a joint venture agreement or relationship,

partnership or formal business organization of any kind or create an emplover/employee relationship between

Owner and Architect, Architect's employees, subcontractors, subcontractors' employees or any person supplied by

Architect in the performance of Architect's obligations under this Agreement and does not entitle said.persons to

rights or benefits from Owner normally associated with an employment relationship, such as.jbut not limited to, civil
service, retirement, personnel rules which accrue to such persons, health insurance, motor vetticle msurance, life

insurance, workers' compensation, sick leave or any other fringe benefits. The Architect anclljthe Architect's

consultants shall have total responsibility for all salaries, wages, bonuses, retirement, witlihdlciings, worker's

compensation, occupational disease compensation, unemployment compensation, other employee benefits and all

taxes and premiums appurtenant thereto concerning such persons and shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend

Owner with respect thereto, including payment of reasonable attorney's fees and costs in the defense of any claim

made under the Fair Labor Standards Act or any other federal or state laws. Such indemnity Shall be required by
Architect from.its consultants, if any, on behalf of Qwner, ; :1

§ 10.10 Retention of Records Architect and any consultant shall keep and maintain accurate [books of record and
account, in accordance with sound accQuntin.g Rrinciples,_ofaUexp_endjtm^ made and all c6As, IIiabilities and

obligations incurred under this Agreement, and all papers, files, accounts, reports, cost prop|>|als with backup data
and all other material relating to work under this Agreement and shall make all such material^ available at the office
ofthe Owner at any reasonable time during the term of this Agreement and for the length ofstims established by law
OT_fjve (5) years, whichever is longer from the date of final payment to Architect or terminatri6nAf-thisjAgreement

for_audit, inspection and copyins upon Owner's request, i

§ 10.11 Subcontracts The Architect shall insert into all subcontracts the paragraphs herein entitled
"INSURANCE." "RETENTION OF RECORDS." and "INDEMNIFICATION." .

§10.12 Compliance with Laws .n
I Is

The Architect shall comply with applicable federal and state laws and local ordinances an4 regulations in
providing services within the scope of this Agreement, including but not limited to the ToHbwing:

.1 The Architect shall comply with. and require all persons providing any of the Services on its behalf to
comply with, to the extent applicable, all applicable federal and state laws and governriiefital rules and
regulations now or hereafter in effect pertaining to equal employment opportunity and discrimination
in provision of the services, including the provisions of the Equal Employment Qpportuhjty Clause.
Architect specifically represents and certifies to Owner that Architect compliesmjttl all applicable
provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act and that it maintains, and shall mairftairifat.all times during
the_period_it js required to_j3erfbmi the Services, a written sexual harassment p61;licviin;full compliance

with Section 2-105(A)(4) thereof. | | | ,f

il il
.2, To,thebestQfthe,Architecfs^^^ officer or employee of Architect Ms hefen convicted of

bribery or attempting to bribe an officer or employee of the State of Illinois. orlany'Unitof local
government, nor has any officer or employee made an admission of guilt ofsu^h conduct which is a

matter of record. Architect's Proposal to the Owner seeking a contract for the performance of the

architectural services for this Project was made without any connection or common interest in the

profits anticipated to be derived from the Agreement by the Architect with any other person submitting
proposals to the Owner for this Project. The Agreement terms are in all respects fair an'8 the

Agreement is entered into by the Architect without collusion or fraud and no c(teimissi®oer, official,
officer or employee of the Owner has any direct or indirect financial interest irijfhe Arcliitect's
Proposal or m the Architect. 1, j U

.3 The Architect certifies that it is not barred from contracting with the Owner betb&use of ariv
delinquency in the payment of any tax administrated by the Illinois Department WReveruie, unless it is
being contested. Architect further certifies that it understands that making a false statemeht regarding
delinquency in taxes is a Class A. misdemeanor and, in addition, voids the Agreement between

Architect and Owner, and allows the Owner, a municipal entity, to recover in a civil action all amounts

AIA Documant B101- - 2007 (formerly BlBl" - 1997). Copyright ® 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The flmerican Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIAS Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



paidtotheArchitect.

A If Architect has 25 or more employees on the date of this Agreement, Architect knows, understands

and acknowledges its obligations under the Illinois Drug Free Workplace Act (30 1LCS 580/1 ef
seq.) and certifies that it will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the actions required under, and
otherwise implementing on a continuing basis. Section 3 of the Drug Free Workplace Act. The
Architect further certifies that it has not been debarred and is not ineligible for award of this
Agreement as the result of a violation of the Illinois Drug Free Workplace Actj

,5 The Architect herbv certifies that, to the best of its knowledge, no individual employed or otherwise
retained by Architect or any of Architect's consultants to perform the Services llias been convicted of a

crime that would make the individual ineligible to be employed by Owner in accordance |with 70 ILCS
1205/8-23. I 1

§ 10,13 Headings The headings for each paragraph of this Aei-eement are for convenience &nd reference purposes

only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of said paragraphs or of this A'greeinent nor in any

wav affect this Agreement. ;

§ 10.14 Notices __Alinotices_ required pursuant to this Agreement shall be sent to the attention o;fi

Owner: i I

Joseph DeLuce I ;1

Champaign Park District . '

706 Kenwood Avenue ^ s

Champaign, IL 61821
T: 217-398-2550 1
Email: joe.deluce(%champai.gnparks.com . i

Architect: .;:!

Ed Scopel : . : !

RATIO Architects, Inc. I i!
301 North Neil Street, Suite 102 > ; ; i
Champaign.IL 61820 , '•,

T; ,,,_____ -,, ,

ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION i
§11.1 For the Architect's Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as
follows: ,:; i, ,': ,;'

(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.) ^ ;'?'

;«»A stipulated lump Sum of Ninety Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($90.000.00) ("Architect's Fee").

§ 11.2 For Additional Services designated m Section 4.1, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. Ifnecessaiy, list specific sei-vices to which particular methods of

compensation apply.)

«»NA
§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.3, the
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: ;} | I
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.) j: : | j

«» ! I I

jAny other additional services will be provided upon a negotiated fee mutually agreed to by Architect and Owner.

AIA Document B101" - 2007 (formerly B151" - 1997). Copyright ® 1974, 1378, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA" Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§ 11.4 Compensation for Additional Services of the Architect's consultants when not included in Section 11.2 or
11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus -pe-Fe®nt-(—o<>),-&i-as-otbei;vMS@-'rtated-l3&t6v\^

zero_CQ%l

«»

§ 11.5 Where compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or percentage of the Cost of the Work,
the compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows: See Section 11.1

~s

^'ols

GeHsfruetien

Deewnerts-Phase

&i ddwH^-er-NegQt4a(i en-Wixts e

T-etal-Baste-Oempensa^ieH-

Schemati'c^ Design Phase

«» Permit and Lighting

Total Basic Compensation

ene-huHdi'e4-

«»

one hundred

pei:eent-(:

pe-Feent-(

pe):eeirt-{

peree-t"tt-(-

pereent-<-

pereent-<:

percent (

percent_(

)ercent__(

)ercent (

percent

percent (

:+00-

«100»

100

%)
%-)

%-)

%)
%)

%)
%}
%)
%)
%)
%).

%)

§ 11.6 When compensation is based on a percentage of the Cost of the Work and any portions of the Project are
deleted or otherwise not constructed, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the extent
services are authorized and proper]y_performed on those portions, in accordance with the schedule sset forth in

Section 11.5 based on (1) the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, or (2) if no such bid or proposal is
received, the most recent estimate of the Cost of the Work for such portions of the Project. The Architect shall be
entitled to compensation in accordance with this Agreement for all services grojierlyperformed regardless of
whether ei:-net-the Construction Phase is commenced.

§ 11.7 The hourly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect's consultants, if any, are set forth
bele^v-.--Tbe4'Tite^-sha^-be-a(yuste£i4tT-aeeei-daHc^--with4^e^^ute4;4^

ppaefriees^and appended to Exhibit A.
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

«»

Efflpl&yfie-opGategoFy Rate

§ 11.8 COMPENSATION FOR REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and include
expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect's consultants directly related to the Project, as follows:

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;

.2 Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project Web sites,

and extranets;

.3 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form documents; ; !:

.5 Postage, handling and delivery; :: |

.6 fepefi5e^^\^44ime^veri^^e-£^iFffi^h-^he^!^»tH:egukii'i'atesT4^y^heH2-e^H^Ava^

77—Renderings, models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by the

Owner;

AIA Document B101" - 2007 (formerly B151"' - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. LFnauthorized reproduction

or distribution of this AIA" Documenfc, or any porfcion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to

fche maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)

23



i8—Architect's Consultant's expense of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this

Project, or the expense of additional insurance coverage or limits if the Owner requests such

insurance in excess of that normally carried by the Architect's consultants;

TS—All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses;

AQ — .7 Site office expenses; and

A4 — .8 Other similar Project-related expenditures.

§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the iArchitect and the
Architect's consultants plus || percent (j| %) of the expenses incun'ed.ten percent d0%). Reuilbursable Expenses
shall not exceed Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($500.00) without prior written approval bf Owner. Architect
shall provide all supporting documentation regarding such Reimbursable Expenses 3 ' ;

§ 11.9 COMPENSATION FOR USE OF ARCHITECT'S INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE | J
If the Owfterterminates the Architect for its convenience under Section 9.5, or the Architect; terminates this

Agreement under Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay a licensing fee as compensation for the Qwner's continued use of

the Architect's Instruments of Service solely for purposes of completing, using and maintairiihg the Project as
^Intentionally omitted. , ,,

«» > II ;i

§ 11.10 PAYMENTS TO THE ARCHITECT 11 11
§ 11.10.1 An initial payment ofj-4$4-«zero ;» ($ «0 i») shall be made upon execution of thlsi Agreement and is the
minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner's account in the final invoice.

§ 11.10.2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed.
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect's invoice. Amounts unpaid F (||) days after the
invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate preyailifig
from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect.in accordance with the Illinois' Local
Government Prompt Payment Act, 50 ILCS 505/1. et. seq.

(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

« »

§ 11.10.3 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect's compensation to impose a penalty or
liquidated damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in
the Work unless the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a bmding dispute resolution
preceeding. Owner has disclosed in writing that the services provided fail, in Owner's opinion, to meet Owner's

reasonable expectation consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Notvvithstanding'the foregoing,

Owner may withhold amounts from the Architect's compensation in accordance with the Local Qo.vemment Prompt

Payment Act, 50 ILCS 505/1 et seq. ;iI '} " ,;

§ 11.10.4 Records ofReimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Additional Services, and services perfomied on
the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times.upon requesit.

ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:

«»§12.1 The Owner will use reasonable efforts to require, and Architect shall provide in any Contract

Documents prepared by Architect on behalf of Owner, that the Contractors responsible for construction shall

purchase insurance to cover claims and expenses, including costs of defense, asserted against Architect, its

agents, employees and consultants for bodily injury, sickness, disease or death to the extent caused by any

neeligent act or omission of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectlv ertiployed by

them or anyone for whose act of them may be liable. Such insurance shall provide substantiallylthat: "The

coverage afforded the additional insureds shall be primary insurance for the additional jinsuredj with respect
to claims arising out of operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. If the additioiial insureds
have other insurance which is applicable to the loss, such other insurance shall be on an excess 6|- contingent

basis. The amount of the Contractor's liability under this insurance policy shall not bej-eduiced by the

existence of such other insurance."

AIA Document B101af - 2007 (formerly B151at - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIAi> Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to

the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



§12.2 In the event Architect provides services in phases beyond Schematic Desisn, the Architect and the
Owneragree that ajirovjsion containing substantially the following language will be inserted in the Contract
Documents in the interests of both parties: "To the fullest extent by law, the Contractor shall waive any right

of contribution and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its commissioners, officers, employees,

representatives and volunteers and the Architect and their employees and consultants from and against all

claims, damages, losses and expenses, includins, but not limited to attorneys' fees and economic or

conseQuential damases, arisins out of or resulting from or in connection with the performance of the Work,

provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in whole or in part by lahy intentional

wroneful act or any neelisent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or

indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable;! reeardless of
whether or not it is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not^e construed
to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity whicli would eSxist as any

party or person described in the Contract. In any and all claims against the Owner, itslcommissionerSi

officers, employees, representatives and volunteers and Architect or any of the employfees and consultants by

any employee of the Contractor or any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them

or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this paragraph of
the Contract shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages,
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or any Subcontractor under Ikvorkers' or

workmen's compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefits acts. dlainil, damages, losses

and expenses' as these words are used in the Contract shall be construed to include, butlnot to limited to 0)
injury or damage consequent upon the failure of or use or misuse by Contractor, its Suticojhtractors, agents,

servants or employees, of any hoist, rigeins, blocking, scaffolding or any and all other feJnd^of items of
equipment, whether or not the same be owned, furnished or loaned by Owner; (2) all aHorhieys' fees and costs

incurred in bringins an action to enforce the provisions of this indemnity or any other indemnity contained in
the General Conditions, as modified by any Supplementary General Conditions; and (3) time expended by
the party being indemnified and their employees, at their usual rates plus consists of travel, Ipngldistaiice
telephone and reproduction of documents." '

under
Agreement. Should Architect refuse or neglect to cure such breach within a reasonable time, taking into

consideration the nature of the breach and its impact on the progress or the cosLot" the WorJUafter receivins

reasonable notice requesting such cure from Owner, then Owner shall be entitled to cure such breach

following additional notice of such intended action to Architect, and recover the cost of such cure from

Architect. This commitment by Architect is in addition to and not in substitytion for, any otherSremedy
which the Owner may have at law or in equity. ;i

i

J ^ ^ '
j_ /, J, ': ;; /.'

§12.4 In the event Architect is hindered, delayed or prevented from performing its obligatio'rfs under this
Agreement as a result of any fire, flood, landslide, tornado or other act of God, theft, stiiike!, Itfckout, other

labor problems, shortages of material or labor, failure of any sovernmental agency or Dwrier to furnish

information or to approve or to disapprove Architect's work or any other cause beyondSthei jreasonable

control of Architect, the time for completion of Architect's work shall be extended by thfe period of resulting
delay, I "•—' '-—i

ARTICLE 13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be

amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Architect. ,; i;

§13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below: ;i; ||
.1 AIA Document B 101 ™-2007, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and' Architect!
.2 AIA Document E201™ 2007, Digital Data Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or tH,e follovyirig:

E1 Jl
73—.2 Other documents: I _ _J

(List other documents, if any, mclnding Exhibit A, Initial Information, and additional scopes of
sei'vice, if any, forming part of the Agreement.)

AIA Document BlOl" - 2007 (formarly B151" - 1997). Copyright ® 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA& Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notaa: (3B9ADAOA)



«» a. Exhibit A— RATIO Architects, Inc. Design Services Proposal (dated August 30. 2017), attached
to and incorporated as part of this Agreement by reference. In the event of a conflict or inconsistencv

between the Agreement and Exhibit A, both shall be construed in a manner most favorable to Owner.

b. Standard Certifications, attached to and incorporated as part of this Agreement as Exhibit A.

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above. :

{fwftecl name and title) {ffmteff-mHHe-ffmi-Me)

OWNER ARCHITECT

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT RATIO ARCHITECTS, INC,

«» «»

(Sisnature) (Srgnatwel
;«_» ! «»

(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

(Printed name and iitle)

648681

AIA Documant B101™ - 2007 (formerly B151™ - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIAS Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Infcernational Treaties. Unaufchorized reproduction
or distribution of this AIA& Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties/ and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:11:13 on 10/23/2017 under Order No. 2136325583
which expires on 08/23/2018/ and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADAOA)



j; ^

? 1;<^ EXHIBIT A

RATIO

Architecture Preservation Interior Design Landscape Architecture Urban Design + Planning Graphic Design

August 30,2017

Mr.JoeDeluce Executive

Director Champaign Park
District 706 Kenwood
Road
Champaign, Illinois 61821

Re: North Champaign Community Center
Programming/Program Confirmation and Schematic Design Phase Design Services Proposal

Dear Joe,

Thank you very much for selecting RATIO Architects (hereinafter alternatively referred to as, "Architect" or "RATIO") to partner

with the Champaign Park District in advancing the North Champaign Community Center project. We-Architect afe-is
honored to participate in a projectthatwill enhance both a neighborhood and our community. Thefollowing constitutes our
understanding ofthe scope ofthework and ourfee proposal.

PROJECT SCOPE

The project consists of the design and construction of a new, North Champaign Community Center in Human Kinetics Park
on North Market Street in Champaign, Illinois. We-Architect understands the project budget target is ten million dollars,
and we-Jurther understands that approximately 60% of that sum has been pledged in support of the total project cost.
Accordingly, we-Architect understands there may be a period of necessary fundraising which may temporarily interrupt
the design schedule progress. We-lt is assumed that owner's costs, fees, etc. ^represent approximately 20% of the

project cost, thereby allocating approximately eight million dollars for construction.

The District provided RATIO with the June 6,2107 document, Human Kinetics Park and North Champaign Community
Centerwhich describes potential programmatic needs. The document also includes a preliminary cost estimate provided
by a third party as well as a preliminary project schedule. In general terms, we-Architect understands the project to

includes gymnasium, two indoor pools (therapy and lap pool), classroom(s), multi-function spaces, a kitchen,

administrative spaces, and a basement. Site work includes parking, it may include athletic the development of athletic
field(s), and it may include other outdoor amenities (walking paths, etc.),

We-Architect assumes the project will follow a traditional design/bid/build methodology. We-do not anticipate tThe
involvement of a construction manager is not anticipated.

RATIO Architects, Inc. 301 N. Neil Street., Suite 102 Champalgn, Illinois 61820 217.352.7696 f: 217.352.7831



RATIOdesign.oom Indianapolis, IN Champaign, IL Raleigh, NC Chicago, I L

Mr.JoeDeluce

Page 2
August 30,2017

We-Architect understands the District does not intend to formally pursue LEED accreditation, but there may bean
interest in collaboratively making environmentally responsible decisions in support of the project. We-Architect will
support an initiative to make such decisions and materials selections.

DESIGN SERVICES

RATIO Architects will provide architecture design, landscape architecture design, and interiors architecture design. The
design and specification offurniture, fixtures, and equipment (FF&E) is excluded from this proposal, butwehavethethere
is in-house expertise to design and specify the FF&E, as desired. It is also unclear te^s-tfwhether the project scope will

necessitate the need to engage a kitchen equipment consultant. The services of an acoustician and/or an audiovisual

consultant are excluded from this proposal. Consultants, includingthe basic services theywill provide, are noted below.

Basic Services include the following phases of work: Schematic Design, Design Development, Construction Documents,

Bidding & Award, and Construction Administration. We propose making submittals, with a corresponding cost estimate ,
after each of the following design phases: Schematic Design, Design Development, and at the 95% completion of
Construction Documents. During the Construction Administration phase, we-Architect proposes weekly, onsite

Owner/Architect/Contractor meetings, concurrent with observation of the work, and we-assumes that the construction

tewilloccur overa period offourteen months.

The following scope of work is not recognized as a Basic Service, but we-Architect proposes providing the following
services as part of this agreement at no additional cost to the Champaign Park District: A) We will pProvide
Programming/Program Confirmcition services priorto the Schematic Design phase within the scope of this proposal. B) In
the interest of supporting fundraising efforts, and at the conclusion of the Schematic Design Phase, we-wtt-generate a

document for yeyfOwner's use that includes plans and elevations. C) We will aAugment the document with three

rendered images: A graphic site plan, an exterior perspective, and an interior perspective. We-Architectwill provide the

Districtwith ten bound, hard copies, and we-will also-transfer the information to veu-the District digitally.

We-Architect understands the District currently intends to authorize the provision of design services through the
Schematic Design Phase only. Accordingly, weArchitect will generate an AIA Owner/Architect Agreement that
reflects this initial, limited phase of design services.

DESIGN TEAM

RATIO Architects proposes the following design team for the Project:

RATIO Architects Architecture, Landscape Architecture, Interior Design
BRiC Engineering Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, and Fire Protection
Bacon, Farmer, Workman Structural Engineering

Counsilman Hunsaker Aquatics Design
Berns Clancy Civil Engineering
Middleton Construction Consulting Cost Estimating



Mr.JoeDeLuce

Page 3
August 30,2017

SCHEDULE

A preliminary project schedule was provided to RATIO Architects by the District in the Human Kinetics Park and North
C/iampa/gnCommunrfyCenferdocument. With the understanding thatfund raising may impact the design schedule,we
Architect proposes discussing the schedule with the District and arriving at a mutually agreeable project schedule. We
areArchitect is prepared to beginwork immediately, upon receipt of a signed proposal.

COMPENSATION

In consideration of the ProjectScope, Design Services, and Schedulewe offer a lump sum fee of Six Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($600,0007 for all phases on a per phase jiasjs as follows:

Programming/Program Confirmation nocost*
Schematic Design (15%) $ 90,000 *
Design Development $120.000
Construction Documents $210.000
Biddings Award $30.000
Construction Administration $ 150.000

$600,000

*TNs-However, the proposal in this Exhibit A is intended to represent the cost of design fees associated
with Programming/Program Confirmation and Schematic Design (i.e. $90,000). Subsequent phases of work (Design
Development, Construction Documents, Bidding & Award, and Construction Administration) are included for
reference yftdcrthcassumptionjn that, at a future date, the District wi^may authorize RATIO Architects to
advance thoundertake such work,

-In the event the scope and project budget increase measurably, we-both Parties reserve the right to request an

opportunity to revisit the scope ofthework and the corresponding fee.

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Expenses attributableto your projectwill be invoiced as a ReimbursableExpenseat1.10timesplus ten percent (10%) of
the item's expense. Expenses may include the following, which are subject to Owner approval:

A, Drawing Reproduction/Photographic Reproduction
B. Copying
C, Supplies
D. Mailing/Express Mail
E. Mileage/Lodging/Meals/Auto Rental/Travel per Diem
F. Renderings (beyond the three noted above)
G, Animations

H. Agency reviews and fees

1, Other, approved, miscellaneous expenses



Mr.JoeDeluce

Page 4
August30,2017

We-Architect estimates reimbursable expenses for all phases will not exceed FourThousand Dollars ($4,000.00). * **

W&-Architect will only invoice for expenses incurred in the interest of the project, and we-will provide back-up receipts

with our invoicing as required. Any monies remaining within this estimate at the completion of the project will revert to
the client in full.

Note: We-Architect assumes the reproduct ion of actual documents will be limited. Related, weAccordingly, Architect

assumes bid set distribution will be electronic, not printed, hard copies.

** Note; Assume that reimbursable expenses will not exceed $500 for work associated with the
Programming/Program Confirmation and Schematic Design phases of work.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Any additional services beyond the identified Design Services, which yey-Owner may request, will be invoiced at the
hourly rate of the personnel assigned to the task. Services provided by RATIO will be performed in accordance with
RATIO'S current fiscal year Standard Hourly Rate Schedule in effect at the time of performance contracting. Tte-That
schedule is updated annually and is available upon requestappended hereto. If an additional service is requested, we

Architect will prepare a written proposal, identifying ewthe applicable services and proposed compensation,tep/eyrfor
ie requested services.

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Invoices will be sent monthly and shall be in proportion to services performed. Payment is due upon receipt. Amounts

unpaid thirty (30) days after being received will bear interest at one and one half percent (41/2%) per month accruedin_
accordance with the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act.

INSURANCE

In consideration of the Project Scope, Design Services and Compensation, RATIO Architects will maintain insurance
coverage for this project with the following limits:

General Liability
$1,000,000 each Occurrence Limit, $2,000,000 Aggregate

Automobile Liability
$1,000,000 CSL each accident, $1,000,000 for Hired and Non Owned Liabilityeach Accident

Worker's Compensation

$§001_000,000 each Accident, $&001_000,000 Disease Policy Limit
Professional Liability

$5,000,000 per Claim, $5,000,000 Aggregate

ABANDONMENT

Ifthe project is abandoned, in part or in whole, payment on account of the services performed will be made upon
presentation of afinal accounting of allowed and properly performed -services rendered and expenses incurred since

the last paid invoice to the date of such action.



Mr.JoeDeluce
Page 5
August 30,2017

Please review this proposal and if all is in order, return an executed original for ourfile, at which time we will draft an

AIAOwner/Architectagreementforyour review. Ifyouhaveany questions, do nothesitateto contact medirectly. Thank

you for considering RATIO Architects for your interesting project.

RATIO Architects, Inc.

Edward J.Scopel,AIA
Principal

ec:

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED;

Mr. Joe Deluce

Executive Director
Champaign Park District

Date



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

DATE: November 8, 2017

SUBJECT: Flower Island Fee

Background
The Flower Island Program began in 1988 with a dedicated goal to "Improve the aesthetic condition of
the community by planting flower islands through partnerships with the local business community". The
program has been very successful, has been recognized with awards and provides job opportunities to
seasonal and full-time employees. It began with six beds and currently has over 100 beds in the
program.

In practice, sponsors of the islands pay a fee to cover the direct operating costs of their island, as well
as an amount to fund islands on public properties such as schools, rights-of-way and not-for-profit

organizations.

Additional Board requested information is attached.

Prior Board Action
Fee increases have been periodic throughout the life of the program, but were approved on an as-
needed basis. A cost recovery goal of 75% was set by the Board in September of 2006 for the
program. The program has had a cost recovery of approximately 62% since 2010. The most recent
increase in fees was completed in 2012.

This action was tabled by the Board at the Oct. 25 special meeting and additional information about the
Flower Island Program was requested.

Budget Impact
The Flower Island Program has a FY2017 budget of $195,360. Current participants in the program are
charged $11.10 per square foot which does not meet the 2006 cost recovery goal set by the Board.
Even with the approval of this increase, staff will continue to evaluate the program over the next year for
possible cost reductions and multi-year fee increase recommendations.

Recommended Action
Option 1: To reach a 75% cost recovery in three years, the Flower Island Program fee would need to
raise to $11.10 per ft2 to $12.00 per ft2 (an approximate 8% increase) for the 2018 season, increase to
$12.96 for the 2019 season, and increase to $14.00 for the 2020 season.

Option 2: To reach a 100% cost recovery in one year, the Flower Island Program fee would need to
increase from $11.10 per ft2 to $17.82 per ft2 for the 2018 season.

Staff recommends Board approval of Option 1.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Daniel Olson Joe DeLuce
Director of Operations Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

FLOWER ISLAND BEDS - 2017

SITE

Area Wide Reporting

Ashford Industrial Plaza

Bacon & Van Buskirk

BankChampaign

BankChampaign

Bielfeldt Athletic Administration
Buildmg

Biggby Coffee-Baskets (4)

Bloomms

Boulder Ridge Homeowners Assoc

Busey Bank-East Bed

Busey Bank-West Bed

Busey Services

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

LOCATION

301 W. White Street

411 OColleen Drive

801 South Neil

Market Place

Neil & Devonshire

1700 S. Fourth Street

401 S.MattisAve.

West Bradley entrance

909 W. Ku-by Avenue

909 W. Ku-by Avenue

Windsor Rd & Fox Dr.

52 E. Armory Street

202 E. Chalmers Street

301 E. Chahners Street

608 East Chalmers Street

SQUARE FEET

55

60

125

100

105

300

12*

;420

50

175

190

100

55

70

60

50

SPONSORSHIP

Direct (Area Wide)

Direct (Ashford)

Direct (Bacon & Van Buskirk)

Direct (BankChampaign)

Direct (BankChampaign)

Direct (Bielfeldt)

Direct (Biggby)

Public

Direct (Boulder Ridge)

Direct (Busey)

Direct (Busey)

Direct (Busey)

Direct (CPM)

Direct (CPM)

Direct (CPM)

Direct (CPM)



SITE

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Campus Property Management

Candlewood Suites (3 Beds)

Carriage Center

CaryerPark-jsign,

Central Illinois Bank North

Central Illinois Bank South

Central Illinois Bank

Rosecrance Healfh Services

Ch Mental Health TMBS.GTR;

Champaign Surplus Store

LOCATION SQUARE FEET

Crescent & John Streets

3 04 East Daniel Street

507 S. 4th Street

4th & Healey

903 S. Locust Street

909 S. Locust Street

408 East Springfield Avenue

606 East Stoughton

512 South 3rd Street

105 S. Wright Street

1917MorelandBlvd

Carriage Center & Neil

Carver'Driye^^BracUe^

2913 W.Kirby Avenue

2913 W.Ku-by Avenue

302 W. Springfield Avenue

FoxDrive

^O^East^WasInngtonStreet::

303 South Neil

50

70

80

75

55

55

65

80

65

80

84

113

V-S42V^^

90

90

110

^
:;t?5:-^,;;:[:-;,

27*

SPONSORSHIP

Direct (CPM)

Du-ect (CPM)

Du-ect (CPM)

Du-ect (CPM)

Direct (CPM)

Direct (CPM)

Direct (CPM)

Direct (CPM)

Direct (CPM)

Direct (CPM)

Direct (Candlewood)

Direct (Coldwell Banker)

Public

Direct (CIB)

Direct (CIB)

Direct (CIB)

Public

! Public

Direct (Champaign Surplus)



SITE LOCATION SQUARE FEET SPONSORSHIP

Chase Bank - raised bed 201 W. University 44 Direct (RMR Ventures)

Chase Bank-containers (3) 201 W. University 21* Direct (RMR Ventures)

Christopher Jeweh-y-baskets (11) 124N.NeilSt. 33* Direct (Christopher)

Church Street Square Church & Randolph 12* Direct (David Meyer)

ClaYt(m..Road,&:Bradle^

Complete Care Pharmacy 14 E. Washington St. 6* Direct (Complete Care)

Ccmst,En&:Research..]-^^_^ ^^^

CMs^s,Attucks,PIace;-.Sign^^

Custom Flooring 315 S. Neil 70 Du-ect (Custom Flooring)

Custom Flooring Boxes 315 S. Neil 3* Direct (Custom Flooring)

Dankle, Brunson, Lee Ltd. DDS 102 W. Springfield Avenue 61 Direct (Dankle)

Dankle, Brunson, Lee Ltd. DDS 102 W. Springfield Avenue 24 Direct (Dankle)

Dankle, Brimson, Lee Ltd. DDS 102 W. Springfield Avenue 18 Direct (Dankle)

Dean's Blueprint (2 Beds) 404 E. University Avenue 64 Direct (Dean's Blueprints)

Dental Office-North 1715 Broadmoor 60 Direct (Dr. Chladny)

Dental Office-South 1717Broadmoor 60 Du-ect (Gray, Yallaly, & Black, DDS)

DevetopmeDtal^erYices.j^^^

Devonshire South Windsor & Prospect 50 Du-ect(DSHA)

Doctor Offices 410 East University Avenue 75 Direct (Sullivan Plumbing)



SITE LOCATION SQUARE FEET SPONSORSHIP



SITE LOCATION SQUARE FEET SPONSORSfflP

Drury Inn - East Bed 905 W. Anthony Drive

Drury Inn - Canopy Bed 905 W. Anthony Drive

Drury Inn - South Entry-South 905 W. Anthony Drive

Drury Inn - South Entry-North 905 W. Anthony Drive

Drury Inn - West Center 905 W. Anthony Drive

Duacan & Windsor ! -———————.

Elite Entertainment 106 S. Country Fau- Dr.

Esquire Lounge - 4 Beds 106 N. Walnut Street

Ford City-Illini Nissan 701 Markefrview Dr.

Fire Station-;N.Mattis' 1810 North Mattis Avenue !

First Bank 114 W. Church St.

185

12

125

30

55

.150

95

120

150

-^f68.y

65

Direct (Drury Inn)

Direct (Drury Inn)

Direct CDrury Inn)

Direct (Drury Inn)

Direct (Drury Inn)

Public

Direct (Elite Entertainment)

Direct (Esquire)

Direct (Ford)

Public;

Direct (First Bank)

4th and.WashmgtpriLStreet;,^,.,;,,,;_-------"--------------"".. ,1;.^ ,, i :.]:.11., .. ,,.„,;_: Public

Gallo-Miller 501 W. Kenyan Road 60 Direct (Gallo-Miller)

Gleason Hagen Ramshaw N. 1615 South Neil 190 Direct (GHR)



SITE

Gleason Hagen Ramshaw S

Herriot's Rentals

HpysingAythoritY,-Eas^

Hoysing^Auttiontx.-.West,

Dr. Huls Office-Bed

Dr. Huls Office - 2 Barrels

Human Kinetics - Comer

Hyatt Place Hotel

Infant Parent Institute

International Soc. ofArboriculture

Interstate Research Park

L-onwood Homeowner's Assoc.

JSM Management Inc

JSM Management Inc

JSM Mgt-Illini Manor-Bed

JSM Mgt IIlini Manor- Barrels (2)

JSM Mgt - Brick Planters - (2)

LOCATION SQUARE FEET

1615 South Neil Street

1420 N. Neil St.

265:'W.;Paric Street:

;205;%^aricStreet::';:,

481 Devonshu-e Drive

481 Devonshu-e Drive

Market & Kenyan

Neil and Church

328NNeil

2101 W. Park Ct.

Mattis - Interstate Drive

Staley Rd & Ironwood Lane

6th & Healey Apartments

6th & White Apartments

401 E. Chalmers

401 E. Chalmers

500 block of East John

JSM Management-Stau-way Planter 500 block of East John

JSM Management-Concrete Boxes; 500 block of East John

130

100

:,75:

::25,

110

6*

215

327

6*

160

350

90

110

145

36

6*

32

27

23*

SPONSORSHIP

Direct (GHR)

Direct (Hen-iot's)

..Public

'Public

Direct (Coldwell Banker)

Direct (Coldwell Banker)

Direct (Human Kinetics)

Direct (Hyatt)

Direct (IPI)

Direct (ISA)

Direct (Newt Dodds)

Direct (Ironwood HA.)

Direct (JSM)

Direct (JSM)

Direct (JSM)

Direct (JSM)

Direct (JSM)

Du-ect (JSM)

Direct (JSM)



SITE LOCATION

JSM Management-Containers (4) 616 East Green Street

JSM Mgt-Cold Stone Creamery (2) 505 East Green Street

JSM Management Office 505 South 5th Street

JSM Management

KmgSybdiYision

Marine Bank

Wright & Springfield

Nelson fc;4& Streets::

1001 South Neil Street

SQUARE FEET

13

113

90

110

r40:

150

Mass Transit, Dut^LTermmal^;^,_^I^^

2909 W. Kirby Avenue

Kirby Avenue & Neil Street

Kirby Avenue & Neil Street

3 30 North Neil Street

805 W. Kirby Avenue

McDonald's (2 Beds)

Merry Ann's Diner - North

Merry Ann's Diner - South

Meyer Drapery

Montessori School

Neil-Kirby Offices

Olde Towne Centre State & Green Streets

PACA Building 44 East Washington Street

Park Place Towers-containers (2) 202 East Green Street

Pioneer Plaza (2 Beds) ,: | ^L:L../..B^omlngtonJ?4i&:?rosPec't,

Dr. Pride (2 Barrels) 1 10 North First Street

Dr. Pride (7 Baskets) 1 10 North First Street

4l3'.

100

120

80

6*

75

75

60

13*

6*

i220:

6*

19*

SPONSORSHIP

Direct (JSM)

Du-ect (JSM)

Direct (JSM)

Direct (JSM)

Public

Direct (Marine Bank)

Public

Direct (McDonald's)

Direct (George Shapland)

Direct (George Shapland)

Du-ect (David Meyer)

Direct (Montessori)

Direct (Coldwell Banker)

Direct (Bankier Apartments)

Direct (PACA)

Direct (Bankier Apartments)

Public

Direct (Hosier)

Direct (Hosier)



SITE

Presence Healthy Aging

Ragle Dental Laboratory-Box

Ragle Dental Laboratory -Bed 301 South First Street

Rental City

LOCATION SQUARE FEET

410 East University Avenue 5 8

301 South First Street 14

20

2508 N. Mattis Avenue 92

Robeson Meadows Home Assoc. Prairie Meadow Dr. & Duncan Rd 70

Robeson Meadows Home Assoc. Scottsdale Dr. & Windsor Road 45

Robeson Meadows Home Assoc. Valleybrook Dr. & Duncan Road 65

Round Barn Center

Sawgrass Home Association

Sawgrass Home Association

Simplified Computers

Skelton Place-Step bpxes (2)

Skelton^ Place -raised planter

Social Security Office

Stadium Plaza

Stanley's Alignment

Tepper Electric Containers (6)

Springfield & Mattis

Bradley & Bluegrass

Staley Road & Wildflower Dr.

901 S.Neil Street

302 South 2nd

302Sou&:2nd

101 S. Country Fau- Drive

1400 Block of South Neil

421 North Neil Street

608 S Neil Street

612S.NeilStreet

612S.NeilStreet

240

35

130

28*

:12*

:'55;

120

215

120

18*

6*

7*

SPONSORSHIP

Direct (Sullivan Plumbing)

Du-ect (Ragle)

Direct (Ragle)

Du-ect (Rental City)

Du-ect (RMHA)

Direct (RMHA)

Direct (RMHA)

Du-ect (George Shapland)

Direct (SHA)

Direct (SHA)

Du-ect (Simplified)

Public

Public

Du-ect (Geroge Shapland)

Direct (Coldwell Banker)

Direct (KWC, LLC: Kip Pope)

Direct (Tepper)

Du-ect (Tepper)

Direct (Tepper)



SITE

Trails of Brittany

Trails of Brittany

Trails of Brittany

Trails at Chestnut Grove

Trails of Chestnut Grove

LOCATION SQUARE FEET

Brittany Trail Dr. & Staley 85

Curtis Meadow Dr. & Staley 70

W. Kirby Avenue and Mullikin 80

North Entrance (off W. Kirby) 70

West Entrance (off Rismg) 1 00

SPONSORSHIP

Direct (TBHA)

Direct (TBHA)

Direct (TBHA)

Direct (TCGHA)

Direct (TCGHA)



SITE LOCATION SQUARE FEET SPONSORSHIP

Unit 4-Southside School 712 S. Pine 110 Public

Unit 4-Stratton School 902 N. Randolph Street 75 Public

U.S.PostOffice-Campys __ 302 E, Green St. _ _ _ 6* _ _Public

U.S Post Office Center North Cir. 2001 North Mattis Avenue 55 Public

U.S. Post Office Center South Cir. 2001 North Mattis Avenue 55 Public

U.S. Post Office N. Rectangle 2001 North MattisAYenye^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^_ Public

U.S. Post Office S. Rectangle 2001 North Mattis Avenue 90 Public

Vesuvious, USA 1404 Newton Drive 80 Du-ect (Vesuvious)

Wagner Machine 3200 Farber Drive 90 Du-ect (Wagner)

Washington Square Randolph & Washington 248 Public

WCIA 509S.NeilSt. 50 Du-ect (In Kind)

* Planter Boxes, Baskets or Barrels

Items highlighted in gray are public Flower Islands supported by Flower Island direct clients.
Items highlighted in yellow are Unit 4 public school Flower Islands supported by Flower Island direct clients.

10



TOTALS

Total Area of Du-ect Sponsored Flower Island Beds 10,961 SQ FT

Total Area of Public Flower Island Beds 4,741 SQ FT

Total Area of Unit 4 Schools 1,766 SQ FT

Total Number of Du-ect Sponsored Flower Island Beds 11 5

Total Number of Public Flower Island Beds 39

Total Number of City Beds 27

Total Area of Flower Island Beds 15,702 SQ FT

Total Number of Flower Island Beds 181

Total Number of Flower Island Sponsors 59

11



(Rweoi&^Vefou^bnevdi
DAY CAMP REPORT

CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

Introduction
Each year, the Champaign Park District offers numerous day camp programs throughout the
summer. While some camps have their own unique offerings and opportunities, many of the camps
operate very similarly allowing participation in general recreation activities, the arts, health and
wellness and field trips.

Background
Summer Day Camp planning is done on a year-round basis with regular committee meetings
happening at least once per month. During planning meetings, the committee discusses parent,
participant, and staff input and suggestions to aid in the development of the next season's
programs. Throughout the camp program, director level staff meet with the Director of Recreation
for Director's Round Tables where they are able to discuss their experiences at their facilities.
These roundtable discussions help camp staff make adjustments throughout the Summer.

Prior to the start of the season, camp staff attend a variety of trainings at various District facilities.
Camp staff also attended a day long training session at the Hilton Garden Inn with professional
speaker, educator and author, Michael Brandwein. He covers topics on behavior management,
problem solving and teaching campers life skills in the camp setting.

Most camps operate for ten (10) weeks beginning the last week of May through the first week of
August. Leonhard Day Camp operates for eleven (11) weeks and ended the second week of
August. In addition to providing a necessary service to the community, camp programs also
provide a multitude of first time opportunities and introductory services for participants. Mini class
sessions allow camp staff to cross sell other District programs for continued patronage throughout
the year.

Summer 2017 Overview

Leonhard Day Camp:
This was the fourth year for camp to be held at the new Leonhard Center and staff felt it improved
from last few years. With a weekly average of 123 (slightly up from 2016 @ 115) campers in
attendance each week, combined with LRC members taking advantage of their memberships, it
made for quite a busy facility. Staff worked diligently to keep campers engaged and busy with field
trips, special guests, and other recreational activities throughout the summer. Staff is already
working on ideas and themes for 2018.

Summer Youth Sports Camp:
The District scheduled two sports camps for 2017 that were unable to run due to low enrollment.
The camps were designed to introduce campers to traditional and non-traditional sports such as
flag football, badminton, basketball, and spike ball. In addition to the physical components, the
camp's goals were to help to instill sportsmanship, teamwork and fair play. For future planning,
staff will be hired to assist with sport activities at each camp offered throughout the District to
introduce new sports, trends, etc. to create more awareness and interest to offer more sports
programs to our residents.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Doufllass Day Camp:
Douglass staff planned a variety of activities that exposed campers to new and different things that
they might not have experienced before such as gardening, visiting Scovill Zoo, and creating
healthy snacks with Illinois Extension staff. Douglass camps work cooperatively with the City of
Champaign to provide free camp to youth in specific neighborhoods in Champaign through the
Community Matters grant program. Over the summer, Douglass received funding to offer six (6)
spots per week for campers ages 6-11.

Douolass Teen Camp:
Douglass Teen Camp caters to youth ages 12-15 and provides them with opportunities to learn
and grow through recreation. Teens go on weekly out of town field trips in addition to learning
about the many local treats in the CU. Teens took advantage of college tours, career exploration
and goal setting throughout the summer. This summer, Community Matters grants funded seven
(7) spots per week for teens who lived in specific neighborhoods in Champaign.

Girls Explore Camp:
Over the summer, Douglass hosted ten (10) weeks of Girls Explore camp which focuses on
Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Math (STEAM) for girls in grades 4-7. Sessions
offered this year included: Biology, Art, Kitchen Creations, Animals, Maker Girl, Engineering,
Gymnastics, Physics, Inventions, and the Girls Go for it: Power up! Leadership camp. Girls Explore
camps have fewer available spots than others to allow for a more intimate learning environment.
Due to the popularity of this camp, the District will offer a Kids Explore camp program to be more
inclusive.

Creative Kids - Springer Cultural Center:
This camp provides experiences in culturally based activities as well as traditional camp
activities. Since it is held at the Cultural Center, campers can take advantage of what the facility
offers including pottery, art projects in the art studio, and creative movement courses with our
Dance Arts staff. Creative Kids Camp works to expose campers to specialty programs offered at
Springer and the instructors that teach those programs to build relationships for repeat patronage.
This is a focus for all of our camps as well.

CUSR - FKO and Camp Spirit:
Camp Spirit was hosted at Edison Middle School while FKO (For Kids Only) was held at the
Spalding Recreation Center. Staff are split into shifts at these camps to ensure safety and security
of all campers and staff. Camp can be long days for participants within this program so making the
option of a split day really helps with behaviors, discipline, etc. This camp remains just as inclusive
as our other camps, does similar activities and takes similar trips as the other camps. FKO &
Camp Spirit visited many places over the summer such as: Champaign Gymnastics Academy,
Crystal Lake Pool, Sholem Aquatic Center, Champaign Public Library, Savoy Movie 10, Fairview
Aquatic Center, Bloomington Children's Museum, Brookemont Bowling and the Kankakee Valley
Ice Arena. These two camps also coordinated two (2) fundraisers: Bake sale and a mini carnival.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Attendance
The Champaign Park District strives to attract and retain participants by offering a variety of
program options at an affordable rate. However, there are many other agencies who also provide
similar opportunities at comparable or lower rates that could affect program numbers. Our
programs provide opportunities for those ages 5-22. (16-22 offered at CUSR camps)

Season

Location
Community Matters
Creative Kids
CUSR-FKO
CUSR-Spirit
Douglass Day Camp
Douglass Teen Camp
Girls Explore
Leonhard Day Camp
Leonhard Teen Camp
Youth Sports Camp

2014

300
288
252*
252*

294
55
N/A
1609
N/A
N/A

2015

211
537
112
111
387
58
101
1434
N/A
N/A

2016

169
627
149
175
445
72
108
1268
134
N/A

2017

130
637
143
203
398
53
88
1235
116
0

*Camp numbers were combined forFKO & Spirit camps in 2014 reporting.

Community Partners
Community partners allow program coordinators the opportunity to provide more variety in their
camp programs. Partners contribute in a variety of ways including adding specialized curriculum,
volunteering and doing guest presentations for campers. Some of the partners this season were:

• Maker Girl
• Common Ground
• Girls Go for It
• U of I Biology Department
• Champaign Gymnastics Academy
• Champaign-Urbana Public Health District
• Champaign Unit 4 School District
• University of Illinois Extension Office
• Champaign County Farm Bureau
• Sola Gratia Farms
• Tony Noel Agricultural Center

Food Programs
The Champaign Park District works closely with Champaign-Urbana Public Health District (CUPD)
and Champaign Unit 4 Schools to provide food to youth during the summer. CUPD provides
snacks to Leonhard and Creative Kids Camps. Champaign Unit 4 Schools provides breakfast and
lunch to Douglass camps and community youth as a part of a federal grant program that
specializes in providing out of school time meals to youth (18 and under) in low-income areas. This
summer, there were a total of 5,520 (breakfast/lunch) snacks provided at Creative Kids Camp,
11,150 snacks (breakfast/lunch) provided at Leonhard Day Camp, 2,826 meals served at Douglass
Day Camp and 538 meals served to community youth at Douglass Community Center.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Budget Impact
Camp prices are reviewed and compared against other entities that provide a similar service to
ensure prices are competitive yet affordable. Below is a quick snapshot on how camps did this
summer with expenses (reflecting staff costs, program supplies/equipment, space rental and
transportation, food supplies, cell phones, field trips, contractual personnel, books/manuscripts,
staff uniforms and participant uniforms).

Creative Kids

Douglass Camp

LRC Day/Teen Camp

Girls Explore Camp

Douglass Teen Camp

CUSR Camp Spirit

CUSR For Kids Only

Fees

Expenses

Net

Fees

Expenses

Net

Fees

Expenses

Net

Fees

Expenses

Net

Fees

Expenses

Net

Fees

Expenses

Net

Fees

Expenses

Net

2017
$74,898.00

$60,180.00

$14,718.00

$38,946.00

$54,884.00

($15,943.00)

$165,104.00

$152,313.00

$11,791.00

$14,378.00

$13,712.00

$666.00

$13,913.00

$16,534.00

($2,621.00)

$21,178.00

$67,428.00

(46,250.00)

$14,308.00

$59,929.00

($45,611.00)

2016
$70,987.50

$56,046.70

$14,940.80

$41,972.50

$62,049.80

($20,077.30)

$166,797.70

$145,921.36

$14,876.34

$17,942.00

$10,173.76

$7,763.24

$11,954.00

$23,101.19

($11,147.19)

$14,427.00

$43,217.86

($28,790.86)

$9,183.00

$41,466.70

(32,283.70)

2015
$53,285.50

$40,144.04

$13,141.46

$41,619.74

$70,178.84

($28,559.51)

$145,013.80

$146,688.63

($1,6891.12)

$9,047.76

$22,380.93

($13,333.17)

$14,427.00

$43,217.86

(28,790.86)

$9,183.00

$41,466.70

($32,283.70)

Scholarship
District scholarships were awarded in the following amounts:

• Douglass Camps- $2,524.00
• Creative Kids: Springer Cultural Center-$2,526.00
• FKO/CampSpirit-$1,862.00
• LRCCamp-$8,181.00

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Monetary and In-Kind contributors
We work with local entities in town to provide financial assistance and residents can apply for
assistance from our scholarship program. Those entities are:

• Champaign-Urbana Public Health District

• City of Champaign Neighborhood Services
• Child Care Resources

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Day Camp Committee Jameel Jones
Director of Recreation

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



lv> ^ '-'

TASTE REPORT

^
• *•

r y

^iSMPROBiHi

ayT'y^
'¥ ^.^.7f

"L.!^
•"- ^^:.

'• I?,---.

c-

\ i
u"'

^i.

^•^
fe-

<

-•-fy-

.^'

"w^^ ^-^lr-%^'^""'"^'^^s^

^T:-:\
l'€

CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

Event Details

Location: West Side Park
Date: Friday, August 18-19, 2017

Time: Friday 5:00-11:00p and Saturday 11:00a-1 1:00p

Attendees entered the park through six main entrance points this year. At each entrance,

various non-profit organizations were responsible for utilizing clickers and counting all attendees

that entered the park and soliciting donations for admittance. Based on those two factors, it is

estimated that 30,000 people attended the event over the span of two days. Donations collected

at the entrances totaled $6,025. Ticket sales on Friday reached $$43,970 and $77,237 on

Saturday. This year weather was perfect and we believe this helped contribute to the increased

sales and attendance.

Event Logistics
The event featured 23 food vendors, 26 artists, 3 corporate sponsors, 26 non-profit sponsors
and various other media sponsors. Like the previous year, food vendors lined the sidewalks
running North-South and East through the park with food trucks moved along University Ave. Art
vendors were moved to the corner of Elm and Church filling in the area where the kid's zone
had been in past years. Community Corridor and Park Partners were stationed on the sidewalk
from the corner of University and Elm. Corporate Corridor sponsors were placed in the middle of
the park between the fountain and gazebo.

Minor changes were added to the event this year including an additional beer vendors featuring
local craft beer to showcase more local craft beer makers. To help decrease expenses local
music was featured instead on hiring larger national acts.

The layout of the food vendors was adjusted slightly due to a decrease of food trucks. There
were a few food vendors that did not wish to participate due to the lack of having a national
band. Their thoughts were that the crowed would be smaller in the evenings effecting their
sales. Based off of positive feedback from 2015 and 2016 from both patrons and vendors, food
vendors were kept on only one side of the sidewalk, while the other side of the sidewalk was
lined with picnic tables for attendees to sit down and enjoy their food.

Budget
Friday evening generated $43,970 in ticket sales, Saturday generated $77,237 in ticket. The
total ticket sales value was $121,207, with projected revenues of $79,666. The projected
expenses for this year's event are $67,117, resulting in a projected net value of $12,549
increased from -$42,467 from last year.

Of the projected expenses, $3,106 will be used for the Special Event Coordinator's salary. Local
music headliners were booked for Taste this year decrease the contractual entertainment from
$31,800 to $7,300.

Weather
This year's weather was excellent with rain only in the late evening after hours on Friday night.
The sun was shining and the temperatures were great for both Friday and Saturday.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Ticketing
Patrons purchased a sheet of 5 tickets for $5. Each ticket was $1. To make up for the loss of
the .25 cents a suggested donation of $5 was asked at each entry point into the festival. In 2016
30% of the proceeds raised at the entrances went the non-profit groups that staffed the
entrances for their help this year it was decreased to 10%. The rest went to the Park District to
help offset event costs.

Beer Sa/es
2017 marked the fifth year in which the Taste of Champaign-Urbana featured the sale of beer.
In past years, attendees have continually requested both local craft beer and domestic beers be
sold. This year Orange and Blue Distributing served with the addition of five local craft beer
distributers to accommodate the past requests. This year 100% of sales went directly to the
Park District. CPD made $31,916 in beer sales, up from last year at $25,587 which is to be
expected with the higher attendance rate for Saturday.

Anyone who wished to purchase alcohol was required to show a valid ID and wear a wristband
in order to purchase alcohol. All servers of alcohol were TIPS trained by park district staff Zoe
Stinson and Wendy Zindars who are certified TIPS trainers. This resulted in the Park District
having numerous CPD staff and volunteers with proper training that is valid for up to 3 years.
Logistically, beer sales was a success. The Park District did not receive any infractions, nor did
the hired security and the Champaign Police Officers who were on site were not needed for any
alcohol-related concerns.

Art Vendors
This year art: vendors were not allowed to park any vehicle behind their tent for the duration of
the festival. This made for a smother set up less safety risks inside of the festival grounds.
Additionally, vendors were allowed to pack up after 9pm. Due to the presence of security guards
dedicated to the artist area of the event from 9-11pm, artists were comfortable leaving their
spots for the night, even while the festival was still open to the public.

Volunteers
Recruitment of volunteers is always difficult, largely because it Taste falls on move-in weekend
for U of I students. Staff utilized extra efforts through the volunteer listserv, social media, and
community outreach to meet the festival's needs. With the use of social media and Facebook
ads, along with reaching out to school groups prior to the summer academic break, the Park
District should see an increase in the number of volunteers for future events.

Sponsorships
Sponsorships were fairly consistent with previous years. Illinois American Water returned as a
$6,000 Main Stage sponsor, $5,000 new sponsorship from Central Illinois Bank and additional
Corporate Sponsor including Midland States Bank.

Survey Results
Surveys were created using SurveyMonkey.com in order to obtain information about the
experiences of patrons, food vendors, beer vendors, and artists and also to obtain their valuable
suggestions for future years.

Family Activities
Joyful Bubbles was the number one pick of patrons for the second year in a row with Joy of
Face Painting as the runner up. We utilized House of Bouncers inflatables again this year due to
positive feedback from last year's event. We featured two new Kid Zone Activities, the HI Striker
Carnival Game and Novelty Toys. The Novelty Toys received a lot of attention during the
festival.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Event Rating/Location
Overall, responses came back generally positive on the event quality with ~80% of the
responses in the Good to Excellent category. Further, 100% of the survey responses rated West
Side Park as a Good to Excellent venue for the event.

Concerns and Comments
Most of the comments that came back about the event referenced the musical entertainment.
Staff received several negative reviews leading up to the event regarding our lack of a national
act. These sentiments were partially reflected in our survey results with 28% rating the music as
very good to excellent, 50% of the patrons rating good, and 22% rating fair to poor. Comments
requesting "nationally-known" musical acts were common. In addition, while we had several new
food vendors, patrons were concerned with the lack of local restaurant participation. As
previously stated, many food vendors opted out of this year's event due to lack of nationally
known musical acts.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community's quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.


	Part 1.pdf
	Part 2
	Part 3
	Part 4

